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INFORMAL COMPLAINT DECISION
THE PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

Date: 1/8/2025 

BCS:  

Acct. No:  

 

V.

PECO Energy

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
DECISION ON INFORMAL COMPLAINT BY THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION (PUC):

The Bureau of Consumer Services investigates and issues final determinations on all informal 
consumer complaints. (66 Pa. C.S. § 308(d)(1), 66 Pa. C.S. § 308.1(a), and 52 Pa. Code § 
56.166).

STATEMENT OF COMPLAINT:

We received your informal complaint on 10/3/2024.  In the complaint, you state that you have 
not received a bill from PECO since April 2024, a period of 5 months.  The Company is not 
threatening disconnection but has stated they will bill you once the system error is corrected.   
You will be required to pay for the current month in addition to catch-up charges caused by 
PECO’s billing error.  You state that a discount should be available, considering the length of 
time you have not been billed.  The Company does not know when the billing problem will be 
resolved.  You asked the PUC for assistance.

INVESTIGATION BY STAFF OF THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION FOUND THAT:

1. PECO reports that you established electric service at xxxxxxxxx on 6/26/2021.

2. PECO reports that on 7/30/2024 you called the Company to ask why you have not 
received a bill since May.  A customer service representative (CSR) advised that the 
Company needs time for the system to update to provide bills.

3. According to Pennsylvania regulations at 52 Pa. Code § 56.11:  Billing frequency.  (a) 
A public utility shall render a bill once every billing period to every residential customer in 
accordance with approved rate schedules.  (b)  A public utility may utilize electronic 
billing in lieu of mailed paper bills.

4. On 8/16/2024 PECO sent an email advising that they are addressing the delay in billing.

5. PECO reports that on 8/27/2024 you called the Company to state it had been 4 months 
since you last receive d a bill.  You stated that you had called the previous month and 
you were advised that the billing system is being upgraded.  A CSR advised you that the 
Company is aware that bills are not being issued, and a follow-up email was sent on
9/13/2024, confirming a delay with account statements.
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6. PECO reports that on 10/2/2024 you called the Company to find out when the billing
issue will be resolved, and if PECO has any payment plans in place for customers
impacted by this billing error.  A CSR advised you that the Company is working on the
problem.

7. PECO reports that on 10/2/2024 a Company representative attempted to call you about
this complaint.  A voicemail message was left.

8. PECO reports that on 10/29/2024 a Company representative spoke with you about this
complaint.  You stated that you received a bill last week for service from 4/26/2024 to
5/28/2024.  The representative explained that the bill was re-sent because the original
bill was based on estimated readings, and the new bill is based on actual readings. The
representative advised that you may have a payment arrangement to amortize the
repayment of charges previously unbilled. You stated that you believe the Company
should do more to make up for the inconvenience caused by their billing error.

9. According to Pennsylvania regulations at 52 Pa. Code § 56.1, (except as provided in this
section) a public utility shall render bills based on actual meter readings by public utility
company personnel.  Per § 56.2 (iii), meter readings by an automatic meter reading
(AMR) device shall be deemed actual readings for the purposes of this chapter.

10.According to Pennsylvania regulations at 52 Pa. Code § 56.14: Previously unbilled
public utility service.  When a public utility renders a make-up bill for previously
unbilled public utility service which accrued within the past 4 years resulting from public
utility billing error, meter failure, leakage that could not reasonably have been detected or
loss of service, or four or more consecutive estimated bills and the make-up bill exceeds
the otherwise normal estimated bill for the billing period during which the make-up bill is
issued by at least 50% or at least $50, whichever is greater:

(1) The public utility shall explain the bill to the customer and make a reasonable
attempt to amortize the bill. 

(2) The period of the amortization may, at the option of the customer, extend at least
as long as: 

(i) The period during which the excess amount accrued.

(ii) Necessary so that the quantity of service billed in any one billing period is not
greater than the normal estimated quantity for that period plus 50%.

11.PECO provided an account statement which shows that no bills were issued between
4/29/2024 and 10/18/2024.

12.The account statement shows that make-up bills were sent starting 10/18/2024 and
billing was caught up by 12/26/2024.  The bills are based on actual meter readings.

13.The account statement shows that you paid the most recent bill for $171.32 on
12/30/2024.



14.The PUC investigator spoke with you on 1/6/2025 and you confirmed that your bills are
current.  The investigator advised that the current balance, now that all bills have been
issued, is $1,111.14, with your next bill due on 1/17/2025.  The investigator advised that
the PUC cannot order a reduction of the previously unbilled charges. The investigator
explained that PECO is offering a payment arrangement, and you will need to contact
the Company to set up payment terms. The investigator explained the PUC appeal and
formal complaint processes and advised that regulations require you to pay the
undisputed portions of your bill(s) while you have an open PUC complaint.

15.According to Pennsylvania regulations at 52 Pa. Code § 56.181:  Duties of parties;
disputing party’s duty to pay undisputed portion of bills.  Pending resolution of a
dispute, including a termination dispute, the disputing party shall be required to pay the
undisputed portion of bills, as described in this section.  (2)  Pending formal complaint.
Prior to the hearing on a formal complaint or prior to the issuance of a Commission order
when no hearing is to be held in a formal complaint proceeding, the customer shall be
required to pay that amount which the consumer services representative determines is
not disputed.

BASED ON THESE FINDINGS, WE CONCLUDE THAT:

1. PECO failed to bill monthly in accordance with § 56.11 because of a system error.

2. In the event of billing error, the Company is authorized to send make-up bills for
previously unbilled charges, per § 56.14.

3. Bills are based on actual readings and are deemed correct.

4. The Company is offering to amortize the previously unbilled charges, per § 56.14 (1) and
(2).

THEREFORE, IT IS DECIDED THAT:

This informal complaint is dismissed.

If you have questions about the terms of this decision or how to appeal this decision, please call 
us at 1-800-692-7380.

Howard Sauertieg, Investigator 
Bureau of Consumer Services
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Direct Dial: 267-533-1830 

khadijah.scott@exeloncorp.com 

 
April 17, 2025 

 
VIA E-MAIL 

Honorable Eranda Vero, ALJ 

Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 
801 Market St., Ste. 4063 

Harrisburg, PA 19107 

 
RE:     Mo Se Chi v. PECO Energy Company 

Docket No. F-2025-3052881 
Date of Hearing: April 22nd , 2025 @ 10:00 a.m. 

 
Dear Judge Vero: 

 

Enclosed please find a copy of PECO Energy Company’s Exhibits 1 through 2, which 

it intends to use in the above referenced hearing. By copy of this letter, I am sending a copy 

of same to the Complainant. 
 
 

Please call my direct dial number if you have any questions regarding this case. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
Khadijah Scott 

 

 
 

KS/ab 

Enclosure 

 
Cc: Mo Se Chi (via email) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

#: 5166655 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 



Online: peco.com In Person: 2301 Market St., Philadelphia, PA 19103 By Phone: 800-494-4000

Name: MO SE CHI

Account Number:

Phone Number:

Service Address: Price Ln, Downingtown

Emergency and Repair

800-841-4141

This is the number to call to report power outages, gas leaks

or odors, and safety hazards related to PECO Equipment.

Page 1 of 3

TAXES & FEES

ELECTRIC SUPPLY

AEP ENERGY, Inc

225 WEST WACKER DRIVE

SUITE 700

CHICAGO, IL 60606

866-258-3782

PECO ELECTRIC

DELIVERY

ELECTRIC

$202.98

Billing Summary

Bill Date 03/28/2025

Thank you for your payment of $236.48 on 02/28/2025

Charges/Credits from previous bill $1,306.28

Late Payment Charge -$15.90

Total Other Charges $1,053.90

Current Period Charges

Electric $202.98

Total New Charges $202.98

Total Amount Due on 04/21/2025 $1,256.88

General Information

Next scheduled meter reading: 05/01/2025

800-494-4000

If you have any questions or concerns, please call 800-494-4000

before the due date. Si tiene alguna pregunta, favor de llamar al

numero 800-494-4000 antes de la fecha de vencimiento.

peco.com/service

Customer Self Service - Manage Your Account 24/7

Start, stop and move your service

Return only this portion with your check made payable to PECO. Please write your account number on your check.

2301 Market Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103-1380

Pay Today!

peco.com/ebill

Go paperless: receive and pay your bill online.

Enroll in Automatic Payment. Complete form on reverse side.

Pledge a donation to MEAF. Complete form on reverse side.

Account #

877-432-9384

Please pay this amount by

04/21/2025

$1,256.88

Payment Amount $

.

Pay by phone, a convenience fee will apply.
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Online: peco.com In Person: 2301 Market St., Philadelphia, PA 19103 By Phone: 800-494-4000

Name: MO SE CHI

Account Number:

Phone Number:

Service Address: Price Ln, Downingtown

Emergency and Repair

800-841-4141

This is the number to call to report power outages, gas leaks

or odors, and safety hazards related to PECO Equipment.

Page 1 of 3

TAXES & FEES

ELECTRIC SUPPLY

AEP ENERGY, Inc

225 WEST WACKER DRIVE

SUITE 700

CHICAGO, IL 60606

866-258-3782

PECO ELECTRIC

DELIVERY

ELECTRIC

$160.64

Billing Summary

Bill Date 10/18/2024

Thank you for your payment of $160.64 on 05/02/2024

Charges/Credits from previous bill $160.64

Electric Customer Charge Adjustment -

Supplier Rate -$2.10

Total Other Charges -$2.10

Current Period Charges

Electric $160.64

Total New Charges $160.64

Total Amount Due on 11/12/2024 $158.54

General Information

Next scheduled meter reading: 10/28/2024

800-494-4000

If you have any questions or concerns, please call 800-494-4000

before the due date. Si tiene alguna pregunta, favor de llamar al

numero 800-494-4000 antes de la fecha de vencimiento.

peco.com/service

Customer Self Service - Manage Your Account 24/7

Start, stop and move your service

Return only this portion with your check made payable to PECO. Please write your account number on your check.

2301 Market Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103-1380

Pay Today!

peco.com/ebill

Go paperless: receive and pay your bill online.

Enroll in Automatic Payment. Complete form on reverse side.

Pledge a donation to MEAF. Complete form on reverse side.

Account #

877-432-9384

Please pay this amount by

11/12/2024

$158.54

Payment Amount $

.

Pay by phone, a convenience fee will apply.
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Account Numbe

Online: peco.com In Person: 2301 Market St., Philadelphia, PA 19103 By Phone: 800-494-4000

n,

Downingtown, PA 19335

$160.64

Electric Choice ID

Meter Information

Read

Dates

Meter

Number

Load Type

Reading

Type

Meter Reading

Previous Present

Difference

Multiplier

X

Total

Usage

04/26-05/28 119854633 General Service Tot kWh 220534 Actual 221685 Estimate 1151 1 1151

Total kWh Used: 1,151

ELECTRIC RESIDENTIAL HEATING SERVICE

Service Period 04/26/2024 to 05/28/2024 - 32 days

PECO ELECTRIC DELIVERY $85.28

Customer Charge 10.54

Distribution Charges 1,151

kWh

X 0.06403 73.70

Distribution System Improvement

Charge

1.04

ELECTRIC SUPPLY $75.39

AEP ENERGY, Inc Charges (866) 258-3782

GENERATION AND TRANSMISSION

1,151 KWH X 0.0655

75.39

TAXES & FEES -$0.03

State Tax Adjustment -0.03

Total Current Charges

$160.64

2023 2024

peco.com/smartideas

Save energy and money

Your Usage Profile

ANNUAL ELECTRIC USAGE

Period Usage

Avg Daily

Usage

Days

Avg Daily

Temp

Current Month

1,151 36.00 32 64

Last Month

1,151 39.70 29 54

Last Year

1,040 35.90 29 61

Avg kWh per Month 1,315

Total Annual kWh Usage 15,776

MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY

0

401

802

1,203

1,604

2,003

Shopping Information Box

When shopping for a competitive electric/natural gas

supplier, please provide the following:

Electric Choice ID:

Electric Rate: Elect Heating Service

If you are purchasing the energy you use from a competitive

supplier, it is important to understand the terms of your

contract and expiration date.

Message Center

From PECO:

New charges contain estimated total state tax of $5.85,

including $9.48 for State Gross Receipt Tax.

Your estimated electric price to compare adder is

$0.0943 per kWh, which includes ancillary charges

and the purchased generation adjustment but

excludes energy and capacity. This may change in

March, June, September and December. For more

information and supplier offers visit

PAPowerSwitch.com.
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Account Number:

Page 3 of 3

Ways to Pay

Online

Visit peco.com/paybill

where you can enroll

in AutoPay, or make a

one-time payment using

your credit card or bank

account.

Mobile App

Download the PECO mobile

app for your Apple or

Android device for the

quickest and easiest way

to manage your account

and pay bill with one swipe

of the finger.

Mail

Mail checks payable to

PECO and write your

account # on your check.

Make sure to include the

tear-off portion of your bill

at the bottom of page 1.

Phone

Call 877-432-9384 to

make a payment with a

credit card, debit card,

or your bank account.*

* Fees apply for card & phone payments.

No fees apply when you create a PECO My Account and pay using your bank account
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Online: peco.com In Person: 2301 Market St., Philadelphia, PA 19103 By Phone: 800-494-4000

Name: MO SE CHI

Account Number:

Phone Number:

Service Address: rice Ln, Downingtown

Emergency and Repair

800-841-4141

This is the number to call to report power outages, gas leaks

or odors, and safety hazards related to PECO Equipment.

Page 1 of 3

TAXES & FEES

ELECTRIC SUPPLY

AEP ENERGY, Inc

225 WEST WACKER DRIVE

SUITE 700

CHICAGO, IL 60606

866-258-3782

PECO ELECTRIC

DELIVERY

ELECTRIC

$236.78

Billing Summary

Bill Date 10/30/2024

Thank you for your payment of $158.54 on 10/21/2024

Charges/Credits from previous bill $158.54

Current Period Charges

Electric $236.78

Total New Charges $236.78

Total Amount Due on 11/21/2024 $236.78

General Information

Next scheduled meter reading: 11/26/2024

800-494-4000

If you have any questions or concerns, please call 800-494-4000

before the due date. Si tiene alguna pregunta, favor de llamar al

numero 800-494-4000 antes de la fecha de vencimiento.

peco.com/service

Customer Self Service - Manage Your Account 24/7

Start, stop and move your service

Return only this portion with your check made payable to PECO. Please write your account number on your check.

2301 Market Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103-1380

Pay Today!

peco.com/ebill

Go paperless: receive and pay your bill online.

Enroll in Automatic Payment. Complete form on reverse side.

Pledge a donation to MEAF. Complete form on reverse side.

Account

877-432-9384

Please pay this amount by

11/21/2024

$236.78

Payment Amount $

.

Pay by phone, a convenience fee will apply.
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Account Numbe

Online: peco.com In Person: 2301 Market St., Philadelphia, PA 19103 By Phone: 800-494-4000

ice Ln,

Downingtown, PA 19335

$236.78

Electric Choice ID:

Meter Information

Read

Dates

Meter

Number

Load Type

Reading

Type

Meter Reading

Previous Present

Difference

Multiplier

X

Total

Usage

05/28-06/26 119854633 General Service Tot kWh 221685 Actual 223186 Actual 1501 1 1501

Total kWh Used: 1,501

ELECTRIC RESIDENTIAL HEATING SERVICE

Service Period 05/28/2024 to 06/26/2024 - 29 days

PECO ELECTRIC DELIVERY $138.52

Customer Charge 10.54

Distribution Charges 155.28

kWh

X 0.08386 13.02

Distribution Charges 1,345.72

kWh

X 0.08416 113.26

Distribution System Improvement

Charge

1.70

ELECTRIC SUPPLY $98.32

AEP ENERGY, Inc Charges (866) 258-3782

GENERATION AND TRANSMISSION

1,501 KWH X 0.0655

98.32

TAXES & FEES -$0.06

State Tax Adjustment -0.06

Total Current Charges

$236.78

2023 2024

peco.com/smartideas

Save energy and money

Your Usage Profile

ANNUAL ELECTRIC USAGE

Period Usage

Avg Daily

Usage

Days

Avg Daily

Temp

Current Month

1,501 51.80 29 76

Last Month

1,151 36.00 32 66

Last Year

1,028 34.30 30 70

Avg kWh per Month 1,354

Total Annual kWh Usage 16,249
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Shopping Information Box

When shopping for a competitive electric/natural gas

supplier, please provide the following:

Electric Choice ID: 4334856035

Electric Rate: Electric Residential Heating Service

If you are purchasing the energy you use from a competitive

supplier, it is important to understand the terms of your

contract and expiration date.

Message Center

From PECO:

New charges contain estimated total state tax of $9.5,

including $13.97 for State Gross Receipt Tax.

Your estimated electric price to compare adder is

$0.0928 per kWh, which includes ancillary charges

and the purchased generation adjustment but

excludes energy and capacity. This may change in

March, June, September and December. For more

information and supplier offers visit

PAPowerSwitch.com.
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Account Numbe

Page 3 of 3

Ways to Pay

Online

Visit peco.com/paybill

where you can enroll

in AutoPay, or make a

one-time payment using

your credit card or bank

account.

Mobile App

Download the PECO mobile

app for your Apple or

Android device for the

quickest and easiest way

to manage your account

and pay bill with one swipe

of the finger.

Mail

Mail checks payable to

PECO and write your

account # on your check.

Make sure to include the

tear-off portion of your bill

at the bottom of page 1.

Phone

Call 877-432-9384 to

make a payment with a

credit card, debit card,

or your bank account.*

* Fees apply for card & phone payments.

No fees apply when you create a PECO My Account and pay using your bank account
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Online: peco.com In Person: 2301 Market St., Philadelphia, PA 19103 By Phone: 800-494-4000

Name: MO SE CHI

Account Number:

Phone Number:

Service Address: rice Ln, Downingtown

Emergency and Repair

800-841-4141

This is the number to call to report power outages, gas leaks

or odors, and safety hazards related to PECO Equipment.

Page 1 of 3

TAXES & FEES

ELECTRIC SUPPLY

AEP ENERGY, Inc

225 WEST WACKER DRIVE

SUITE 700

CHICAGO, IL 60606

866-258-3782

PECO ELECTRIC

DELIVERY

ELECTRIC

$259.52

Billing Summary

Bill Date 11/04/2024

Charges/Credits from previous bill $236.78

Total Other Charges $236.78

Current Period Charges

Electric $259.52

Total New Charges $259.52

Total Amount Due on 11/26/2024 $496.30

General Information

Next scheduled meter reading: 11/26/2024

800-494-4000

If you have any questions or concerns, please call 800-494-4000

before the due date. Si tiene alguna pregunta, favor de llamar al

numero 800-494-4000 antes de la fecha de vencimiento.

peco.com/service

Customer Self Service - Manage Your Account 24/7

Start, stop and move your service

Return only this portion with your check made payable to PECO. Please write your account number on your check.

2301 Market Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103-1380

Pay Today!

peco.com/ebill

Go paperless: receive and pay your bill online.

Enroll in Automatic Payment. Complete form on reverse side.

Pledge a donation to MEAF. Complete form on reverse side.

Accoun

877-432-9384

Please pay this amount by

11/26/2024

$496.30

Payment Amount $

.

Pay by phone, a convenience fee will apply.
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Account Number

Page 2 of 3

Online: peco.com In Person: 2301 Market St., Philadelphia, PA 19103 By Phone: 800-494-4000

1

Service Address Price Ln,

Downingtown, PA 19335

$259.52

Electric Choice ID:

Meter Information

Read

Dates

Meter

Number

Load Type

Reading

Type

Meter Reading

Previous Present

Difference

Multiplier

X

Total

Usage

06/26-07/26 119854633 General Service Tot kWh 223186 Actual 224837 Actual 1651 1 1651

Total kWh Used: 1,651

ELECTRIC RESIDENTIAL HEATING SERVICE

Service Period 06/26/2024 to 07/26/2024 - 30 days

PECO ELECTRIC DELIVERY $151.44

Customer Charge 10.54

Distribution Charges 1,651

kWh

X 0.08416 138.95

Distribution System Improvement

Charge

1.95

ELECTRIC SUPPLY $108.14

AEP ENERGY, Inc Charges (866) 258-3782

GENERATION AND TRANSMISSION

1,651 KWH X 0.0655

108.14

TAXES & FEES -$0.06

State Tax Adjustment -0.06

Total Current Charges

$259.52

2023 2024

peco.com/smartideas

Save energy and money

Your Usage Profile

ANNUAL ELECTRIC USAGE

Period Usage

Avg Daily

Usage

Days

Avg Daily

Temp

Current Month

1,651 55.00 30 81

Last Month

1,501 51.80 29 81

Last Year

1,594 49.80 32 79

Avg kWh per Month 1,359

Total Annual kWh Usage 16,306
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Shopping Information Box

When shopping for a competitive electric/natural gas

supplier, please provide the following:

Electric Choice ID:

Electric Rate: Elect Heating Service

If you are purchasing the energy you use from a competitive

supplier, it is important to understand the terms of your

contract and expiration date.

Message Center

From PECO:

New charges contain estimated total state tax of

$10.38, including $15.31 for State Gross Receipt Tax.

Your estimated electric price to compare adder is

$0.0928 per kWh, which includes ancillary charges

and the purchased generation adjustment but

excludes energy and capacity. This may change in

March, June, September and December. For more

information and supplier offers visit

PAPowerSwitch.com.
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Account Numb

Page 3 of 3

Ways to Pay

Online

Visit peco.com/paybill

where you can enroll

in AutoPay, or make a

one-time payment using

your credit card or bank

account.

Mobile App

Download the PECO mobile

app for your Apple or

Android device for the

quickest and easiest way

to manage your account

and pay bill with one swipe

of the finger.

Mail

Mail checks payable to

PECO and write your

account # on your check.

Make sure to include the

tear-off portion of your bill

at the bottom of page 1.

Phone

Call 877-432-9384 to

make a payment with a

credit card, debit card,

or your bank account.*

* Fees apply for card & phone payments.

No fees apply when you create a PECO My Account and pay using your bank account
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Online: peco.com In Person: 2301 Market St., Philadelphia, PA 19103 By Phone: 800-494-4000

Name: MO SE CHI

Account Number:

Phone Number:

Service Address: Price Ln, Downingtown

Emergency and Repair

800-841-4141

This is the number to call to report power outages, gas leaks

or odors, and safety hazards related to PECO Equipment.

Page 1 of 3

TAXES & FEES

ELECTRIC SUPPLY

AEP ENERGY, Inc

225 WEST WACKER DRIVE

SUITE 700

CHICAGO, IL 60606

866-258-3782

PECO ELECTRIC

DELIVERY

ELECTRIC

$221.54

Billing Summary

Bill Date 11/08/2024

Charges/Credits from previous bill $496.30

Total Other Charges $496.30

Current Period Charges

Electric $221.54

Total New Charges $221.54

Total Amount Due on 12/02/2024 $717.84

General Information

Next scheduled meter reading: 11/26/2024

800-494-4000

If you have any questions or concerns, please call 800-494-4000

before the due date. Si tiene alguna pregunta, favor de llamar al

numero 800-494-4000 antes de la fecha de vencimiento.

peco.com/service

Customer Self Service - Manage Your Account 24/7

Start, stop and move your service

Return only this portion with your check made payable to PECO. Please write your account number on your check.

2301 Market Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103-1380

Pay Today!

peco.com/ebill

Go paperless: receive and pay your bill online.

Enroll in Automatic Payment. Complete form on reverse side.

Pledge a donation to MEAF. Complete form on reverse side.

Account

877-432-9384

Please pay this amount by

12/02/2024

$717.84

Payment Amount $

.

Pay by phone, a convenience fee will apply.
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PHILADELPHIA PA 19101-0629    



Account Number:

Page 2 of 3

Online: peco.com In Person: 2301 Market St., Philadelphia, PA 19103 By Phone: 800-494-4000

1

Service Address Price Ln,

Downingtown, PA 19335

$221.54

Electric Choice

Meter Information

Read

Dates

Meter

Number

Load Type

Reading

Type

Meter Reading

Previous Present

Difference

Multiplier

X

Total

Usage

07/26-08/26 119854633 General Service Tot kWh 224837 Actual 226236 Actual 1399 1 1399

Total kWh Used: 1,399

ELECTRIC RESIDENTIAL HEATING SERVICE

Service Period 07/26/2024 to 08/26/2024 - 31 days

PECO ELECTRIC DELIVERY $129.96

Customer Charge 10.54

Distribution Charges 1,399

kWh

X 0.08416 117.74

Distribution System Improvement

Charge

1.68

ELECTRIC SUPPLY $91.63

AEP ENERGY, Inc Charges (866) 258-3782

GENERATION AND TRANSMISSION

1,399 KWH X 0.0655

91.63

TAXES & FEES -$0.05

State Tax Adjustment -0.05

Total Current Charges

$221.54

2023 2024

peco.com/smartideas

Save energy and money

Your Usage Profile

ANNUAL ELECTRIC USAGE

Period Usage

Avg Daily

Usage

Days

Avg Daily

Temp

Current Month

1,399 45.10 31 77

Last Month

1,651 55.00 30 86

Last Year

1,224 42.20 29 77

Avg kWh per Month 1,373

Total Annual kWh Usage 16,481
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Shopping Information Box

When shopping for a competitive electric/natural gas

supplier, please provide the following:

Electric Choice ID: 4334856035

Electric Rate: Electric Residential Heating Service

If you are purchasing the energy you use from a competitive

supplier, it is important to understand the terms of your

contract and expiration date.

Message Center

From PECO:

New charges contain estimated total state tax of $8.91,

including $13.08 for State Gross Receipt Tax.

Your estimated electric price to compare adder is

$0.0928 per kWh, which includes ancillary charges

and the purchased generation adjustment but

excludes energy and capacity. This may change in

March, June, September and December. For more

information and supplier offers visit

PAPowerSwitch.com.
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Account Number:

Page 3 of 3

Ways to Pay

Online

Visit peco.com/paybill

where you can enroll

in AutoPay, or make a

one-time payment using

your credit card or bank

account.

Mobile App

Download the PECO mobile

app for your Apple or

Android device for the

quickest and easiest way

to manage your account

and pay bill with one swipe

of the finger.

Mail

Mail checks payable to

PECO and write your

account # on your check.

Make sure to include the

tear-off portion of your bill

at the bottom of page 1.

Phone

Call 877-432-9384 to

make a payment with a

credit card, debit card,

or your bank account.*

* Fees apply for card & phone payments.

No fees apply when you create a PECO My Account and pay using your bank account
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Online: peco.com In Person: 2301 Market St., Philadelphia, PA 19103 By Phone: 800-494-4000

Name: MO SE CHI

Account Number:

Phone Number:

Service Address: Price Ln, Downingtown

Emergency and Repair

800-841-4141

This is the number to call to report power outages, gas leaks

or odors, and safety hazards related to PECO Equipment.

Page 1 of 3

TAXES & FEES

ELECTRIC SUPPLY

AEP ENERGY, Inc

225 WEST WACKER DRIVE

SUITE 700

CHICAGO, IL 60606

866-258-3782

PECO ELECTRIC

DELIVERY

ELECTRIC

$199.23

Billing Summary

Bill Date 11/13/2024

Charges/Credits from previous bill $717.84

Total Other Charges $717.84

Current Period Charges

Electric $199.23

Total New Charges $199.23

Total Amount Due on 12/05/2024 $917.07

General Information

Next scheduled meter reading: 11/26/2024

800-494-4000

If you have any questions or concerns, please call 800-494-4000

before the due date. Si tiene alguna pregunta, favor de llamar al

numero 800-494-4000 antes de la fecha de vencimiento.

peco.com/service

Customer Self Service - Manage Your Account 24/7

Start, stop and move your service

Return only this portion with your check made payable to PECO. Please write your account number on your check.

2301 Market Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103-1380

Pay Today!

peco.com/ebill

Go paperless: receive and pay your bill online.

Enroll in Automatic Payment. Complete form on reverse side.

Pledge a donation to MEAF. Complete form on reverse side.

Account #

877-432-9384

Please pay this amount by

12/05/2024

$917.07

Payment Amount $

.

Pay by phone, a convenience fee will apply.
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Account Numbe

Page 2 of 3

Online: peco.com In Person: 2301 Market St., Philadelphia, PA 19103 By Phone: 800-494-4000

1

Service Address Price Ln,

Downingtown, PA 19335

$199.23

Electric Choice ID:

Meter Information

Read

Dates

Meter

Number

Load Type

Reading

Type

Meter Reading

Previous Present

Difference

Multiplier

X

Total

Usage

08/26-09/25 119854633 General Service Tot kWh 226236 Actual 227487 Actual 1251 1 1251

Total kWh Used: 1,251

ELECTRIC RESIDENTIAL HEATING SERVICE

Service Period 08/26/2024 to 09/25/2024 - 30 days

PECO ELECTRIC DELIVERY $117.34

Customer Charge 10.54

Distribution Charges 1,251

kWh

X 0.08416 105.28

Distribution System Improvement

Charge

1.52

ELECTRIC SUPPLY $81.94

AEP ENERGY, Inc Charges (866) 258-3782

GENERATION AND TRANSMISSION

1,251 KWH X 0.0655

81.94

TAXES & FEES -$0.05

State Tax Adjustment -0.05

Total Current Charges

$199.23

2023 2024

peco.com/smartideas

Save energy and money

Your Usage Profile

ANNUAL ELECTRIC USAGE

Period Usage

Avg Daily

Usage

Days

Avg Daily

Temp

Current Month

1,251 41.70 30 72

Last Month

1,399 45.10 31 82

Last Year

1,294 43.10 30 73

Avg kWh per Month 1,370

Total Annual kWh Usage 16,438
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Shopping Information Box

When shopping for a competitive electric/natural gas

supplier, please provide the following:

Electric Choice ID: 4334856035

Electric Rate: Electric Residential Heating Service

If you are purchasing the energy you use from a competitive

supplier, it is important to understand the terms of your

contract and expiration date.

Message Center

From PECO:

New charges contain estimated total state tax of $8.05,

including $11.75 for State Gross Receipt Tax.

Your estimated electric price to compare adder is

$0.0924 per kWh, which includes ancillary charges

and the purchased generation adjustment but

excludes energy and capacity. This may change in

March, June, September and December. For more

information and supplier offers visit

PAPowerSwitch.com.
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Account Number

Page 3 of 3

Ways to Pay

Online

Visit peco.com/paybill

where you can enroll

in AutoPay, or make a

one-time payment using

your credit card or bank

account.

Mobile App

Download the PECO mobile

app for your Apple or

Android device for the

quickest and easiest way

to manage your account

and pay bill with one swipe

of the finger.

Mail

Mail checks payable to

PECO and write your

account # on your check.

Make sure to include the

tear-off portion of your bill

at the bottom of page 1.

Phone

Call 877-432-9384 to

make a payment with a

credit card, debit card,

or your bank account.*

* Fees apply for card & phone payments.

No fees apply when you create a PECO My Account and pay using your bank account
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Online: peco.com In Person: 2301 Market St., Philadelphia, PA 19103 By Phone: 800-494-4000

Name: MO SE CHI

Account Numbe

Phone Number:

Service Address: Price Ln, Downingtown

Emergency and Repair

800-841-4141

This is the number to call to report power outages, gas leaks

or odors, and safety hazards related to PECO Equipment.

Page 1 of 3

TAXES & FEES

ELECTRIC SUPPLY

AEP ENERGY, Inc

225 WEST WACKER DRIVE

SUITE 700

CHICAGO, IL 60606

866-258-3782

PECO ELECTRIC

DELIVERY

ELECTRIC

$136.92

Billing Summary

Bill Date 11/15/2024

Charges/Credits from previous bill $917.07

Total Other Charges $917.07

Current Period Charges

Electric $136.92

Total New Charges $136.92

Total Amount Due on 12/09/2024 $1,053.99

General Information

Next scheduled meter reading: 11/26/2024

800-494-4000

If you have any questions or concerns, please call 800-494-4000

before the due date. Si tiene alguna pregunta, favor de llamar al

numero 800-494-4000 antes de la fecha de vencimiento.

peco.com/service

Customer Self Service - Manage Your Account 24/7

Start, stop and move your service

Return only this portion with your check made payable to PECO. Please write your account number on your check.

2301 Market Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103-1380

Pay Today!

peco.com/ebill

Go paperless: receive and pay your bill online.

Enroll in Automatic Payment. Complete form on reverse side.

Pledge a donation to MEAF. Complete form on reverse side.

Account #

877-432-9384

Please pay this amount by

12/09/2024

$1,053.99

Payment Amount $

.

Pay by phone, a convenience fee will apply.
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DOWNINGTOWN, PA 19335                             
                                                  
                                                  

                                                                 
PECO - PAYMENT PROCESSING         
PO BOX 37629             
PHILADELPHIA PA 19101-0629    



Account Number:

Page 2 of 3

Online: peco.com In Person: 2301 Market St., Philadelphia, PA 19103 By Phone: 800-494-4000

1

Service Address Price Ln,

Downingtown, PA 19335

$136.92

Electric Choice ID: 4334856035

Meter Information

Read

Dates

Meter

Number

Load Type

Reading

Type

Meter Reading

Previous Present

Difference

Multiplier

X

Total

Usage

09/25-10/24 119854633 General Service Tot kWh 227487 Actual 228451 Actual 964 1 964

Total kWh Used: 964

ELECTRIC RESIDENTIAL HEATING SERVICE

Service Period 09/25/2024 to 10/24/2024 - 29 days

PECO ELECTRIC DELIVERY $73.81

Customer Charge 10.54

Distribution Charges 964

kWh

X 0.06433 62.01

Distribution System Improvement

Charge

1.26

ELECTRIC SUPPLY $63.14

AEP ENERGY, Inc Charges (866) 258-3782

GENERATION AND TRANSMISSION 964

KWH X 0.0655

63.14

TAXES & FEES -$0.03

State Tax Adjustment -0.03

Total Current Charges

$136.92

2023 2024

peco.com/smartideas

Save energy and money

Your Usage Profile

ANNUAL ELECTRIC USAGE

Period Usage

Avg Daily

Usage

Days

Avg Daily

Temp

Current Month

964 33.20 29 64

Last Month

1,251 41.70 30 76

Last Year

1,026 35.40 29 61

Avg kWh per Month 1,365

Total Annual kWh Usage 16,376
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2,003

Shopping Information Box

When shopping for a competitive electric/natural gas

supplier, please provide the following:

Electric Choice ID: 4334856035

Electric Rate: Electric Residential Heating Service

If you are purchasing the energy you use from a competitive

supplier, it is important to understand the terms of your

contract and expiration date.

Message Center

From PECO:

New charges contain estimated total state tax of $5.06,

including $8.08 for State Gross Receipt Tax.

Your estimated electric price to compare adder is

$0.0924 per kWh, which includes ancillary charges

and the purchased generation adjustment but

excludes energy and capacity. This may change in

March, June, September and December. For more

information and supplier offers visit

PAPowerSwitch.com.
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Account Number 0

Page 3 of 3

Ways to Pay

Online

Visit peco.com/paybill

where you can enroll

in AutoPay, or make a

one-time payment using

your credit card or bank

account.

Mobile App

Download the PECO mobile

app for your Apple or

Android device for the

quickest and easiest way

to manage your account

and pay bill with one swipe

of the finger.

Mail

Mail checks payable to

PECO and write your

account # on your check.

Make sure to include the

tear-off portion of your bill

at the bottom of page 1.

Phone

Call 877-432-9384 to

make a payment with a

credit card, debit card,

or your bank account.*

* Fees apply for card & phone payments.

No fees apply when you create a PECO My Account and pay using your bank account
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Online: peco.com In Person: 2301 Market St., Philadelphia, PA 19103 By Phone: 800-494-4000

Name: MO SE CHI

Account Number:

Phone Number:

Service Address: Downingtown

Emergency and Repair

800-841-4141

This is the number to call to report power outages, gas leaks

or odors, and safety hazards related to PECO Equipment.

Page 1 of 3

TAXES & FEES

ELECTRIC SUPPLY

AEP ENERGY, Inc

225 WEST WACKER DRIVE

SUITE 700

CHICAGO, IL 60606

866-258-3782

PECO ELECTRIC

DELIVERY

ELECTRIC

$133.26

Billing Summary

Bill Date 11/23/2024

Charges/Credits from previous bill $1,053.99

Total Other Charges $1,053.99

Current Period Charges

Electric $133.26

Total New Charges $133.26

Total Amount Due on 12/16/2024 $1,187.25

General Information

Next scheduled meter reading: 12/27/2024

800-494-4000

If you have any questions or concerns, please call 800-494-4000

before the due date. Si tiene alguna pregunta, favor de llamar al

numero 800-494-4000 antes de la fecha de vencimiento.

peco.com/service

Customer Self Service - Manage Your Account 24/7

Start, stop and move your service

Return only this portion with your check made payable to PECO. Please write your account number on your check.

2301 Market Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103-1380

Pay Today!

peco.com/ebill

Go paperless: receive and pay your bill online.

Enroll in Automatic Payment. Complete form on reverse side.

Pledge a donation to MEAF. Complete form on reverse side.

Account

877-432-9384

Please pay this amount by

12/16/2024

$1,187.25

Payment Amount $

.

Pay by phone, a convenience fee will apply.
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Account Number:

Page 2 of 3

Online: peco.com In Person: 2301 Market St., Philadelphia, PA 19103 By Phone: 800-494-4000

1

Service Address Price Ln,

Downingtown, PA 19335

$133.26

Electric Choice ID

Meter Information

Read

Dates

Meter

Number

Load Type

Reading

Type

Meter Reading

Previous Present

Difference

Multiplier

X

Total

Usage

10/24-11/22 119854633 General Service Tot kWh 228451 Actual 229387 Actual 936 1 936

Total kWh Used: 936

ELECTRIC RESIDENTIAL HEATING SERVICE

Service Period 10/24/2024 to 11/22/2024 - 29 days

PECO ELECTRIC DELIVERY $71.98

Customer Charge 10.54

Distribution Charges 936

kWh

X 0.06433 60.21

Distribution System Improvement

Charge

1.23

ELECTRIC SUPPLY $61.31

AEP ENERGY, Inc Charges (866) 258-3782

GENERATION AND TRANSMISSION 936

KWH X 0.0655

61.31

TAXES & FEES -$0.03

State Tax Adjustment -0.03

Total Current Charges

$133.26

2023 2024

peco.com/smartideas

Save energy and money

Your Usage Profile

ANNUAL ELECTRIC USAGE

Period Usage

Avg Daily

Usage

Days

Avg Daily

Temp

Current Month

936 32.30 29 56

Last Month

964 33.20 29 68

Last Year

1,041 33.60 31 50

Avg kWh per Month 1,356

Total Annual kWh Usage 16,271
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Shopping Information Box

When shopping for a competitive electric/natural gas

supplier, please provide the following:

Electric Choice ID: 4334856035

Electric Rate: Electric Residential Heating Service

If you are purchasing the energy you use from a competitive

supplier, it is important to understand the terms of your

contract and expiration date.

Message Center

From PECO:

New charges contain estimated total state tax of $4.94,

including $7.87 for State Gross Receipt Tax.

Your estimated electric price to compare adder is

$0.0924 per kWh, which includes ancillary charges

and the purchased generation adjustment but

excludes energy and capacity. This may change in

March, June, September and December. For more

information and supplier offers visit

PAPowerSwitch.com.
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Account Number

Page 3 of 3

Ways to Pay

Online

Visit peco.com/paybill

where you can enroll

in AutoPay, or make a

one-time payment using

your credit card or bank

account.

Mobile App

Download the PECO mobile

app for your Apple or

Android device for the

quickest and easiest way

to manage your account

and pay bill with one swipe

of the finger.

Mail

Mail checks payable to

PECO and write your

account # on your check.

Make sure to include the

tear-off portion of your bill

at the bottom of page 1.

Phone

Call 877-432-9384 to

make a payment with a

credit card, debit card,

or your bank account.*

* Fees apply for card & phone payments.

No fees apply when you create a PECO My Account and pay using your bank account
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Account Number:

Page 2 of 3

Online: peco.com In Person: 2301 Market St., Philadelphia, PA 19103 By Phone: 800-494-4000

1

Service Address Price Ln,

Downingtown, PA 19335

$202.98

Electric Choice I

Meter Information

Read

Dates

Meter

Number

Load Type

Reading

Type

Meter Reading

Previous Present

Difference

Multiplier

X

Total

Usage

02/25-03/27 119854633 General Service Tot kWh 233705 Actual 235010 Actual 1305 1 1305

Total kWh Used: 1,305

ELECTRIC RESIDENTIAL HEATING SERVICE

Service Period 02/25/2025 to 03/27/2025 - 30 days

PECO ELECTRIC DELIVERY $107.06

Customer Charge 11.29

Distribution Charges 1,305

kWh

X 0.07339 95.77

ELECTRIC SUPPLY $95.92

AEP ENERGY, Inc Charges (866) 258-3782

GENERATION AND TRANSMISSION

1,305 KWH X 0.0735

95.92

TAXES & FEES $0.00

Total Current Charges

$202.98

2024 2025

peco.com/WaysToSave

Save energy and money

Your Usage Profile

ANNUAL ELECTRIC USAGE

Period Usage

Avg Daily

Usage

Days

Avg Daily

Temp

Current Month

1,305 43.50 30 48

Last Month

1,533 52.90 29 37

Last Year

1,210 43.20 28 48

Avg kWh per Month 1,302

Total Annual kWh Usage 15,627
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Shopping Information Box

When shopping for a competitive electric/natural gas

supplier, please provide the following:

Electric Choice ID: 4334856035

Electric Rate: Electric Residential Heating Service

If you are purchasing the energy you use from a competitive

supplier, it is important to understand the terms of your

contract and expiration date.

Message Center

From PECO:

New charges contain estimated total state tax of $7.31,

including $11.98 for State Gross Receipt Tax.

Your estimated electric price to compare adder is

$0.0924 per kWh, which includes ancillary charges

and the purchased generation adjustment but

excludes energy and capacity. This may change in

March, June, September and December. For more

information and supplier offers visit

PAPowerSwitch.com.
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Account Numbe

Page 3 of 3

Ways to Pay

Online

Visit peco.com/paybill

where you can enroll

in AutoPay, or make a

one-time payment using

your credit card or bank

account.

Mobile App

Download the PECO mobile

app for your Apple or

Android device for the

quickest and easiest way

to manage your account

and pay bill with one swipe

of the finger.

Mail

Mail checks payable to

PECO and write your

account # on your check.

Make sure to include the

tear-off portion of your bill

at the bottom of page 1.

Phone

Call 877-432-9384 to

make a payment with a

credit card, debit card,

or your bank account.*

* Fees apply for card & phone payments.

No fees apply when you create a PECO My Account and pay using your bank account
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                   COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA              

                     PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION               

     - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -                     

     MO SE CHI                        : DOCKET NO.           

                                        : F-2025-3052881     

          vs.                           :                    

                                        :                    

     PECO ENERGY COMPANY                :                    

                                        :                    

     Initial Call In Telephonic Hearing :                    

     - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -                     

     Page 1 - 55                                             

                        Judge's Chambers                     

                        Pennsylvania Public Utility          

                        Commission                           

                        801 Market Street, Suite 4063        

                        Philadelphia, PA 19107               

                        Tuesday, April 22, 2025              

                        Commencing at 10:00 a.m.             

     BEFORE:                                                 

          Honorable Eranda Vero, Administrative Law Judge    

     REPORTER:                                               

          Marissa Bennett                                    

         ANY REPRODUCTION OF THIS TRANSCRIPT IS PROHIBITED   

                     BY THE CERTIFYING AGENCY                

                KARASCH & ASSOCIATES (800) 621-5689          
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  1  APPEARANCES:                                            

  2       BY:  Mo Se Chi, pro se                             

          1417 Price Lane                                    

  3       Downington, PA 19335                               

          (267)231-3163                                      

  4       Email                                              

          Representing the Complainant                       

  5                                                          

  6       PECO ENERGY COMPANY                                

          BY: KHADIJAH SCOTT, ESQ.                           

  7       2301 Market Street - S23-1                         

          Philadelphia, PA 19103                             

  8       (267)533-1830                                      

          khadijah.scott@exeloncorp.com                      

  9       Representing the Respondent                        

 10  ALSO PRESENT: (if needed)                               

     Teresa Clark, PECO                                      

 11  Renee Tarpley, PECO                                     

 12                                                          

 13                                                          

 14                                                          

 15                                                          

 16                                                          

 17                                                          

 18                                                          

 19                                                          

 20                                                          

 21                                                          
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  7  Cross Exam by Mr. Chi                        26         
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 13                                                          

 14  CLOSING STATEMENT BY RESPONDENT              (PAGE)     
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 16                                                          

 17                                                          

 18                                                          

 19                                                          

 20                                                          

 21                                                          
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  1              REPORTER:  We're all ready to go on the     

  2       record, Judge.  It is 10 a.m.                      

  3              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Very good.  

  4              Good morning.  This is the time and place   

  5       for the hearing in the matter of Mo Se Chi v. PECO 

  6       Energy Company, at docket number  F-2025-3052881.  

  7       My name is Administrative Law Judge Eranda Vero,   

  8       and I am the presiding officer for this hearing.   

  9              Now, before we begin with the hearing, I'd  

 10       like to note for the record that present here this 

 11       morning via telephone, I have the Complainant, Mr. 

 12       Mo Se Chi.  And for PECO Energy Company, I have the

 13       attorney Khadijah Scott, who is accompanied by two 

 14       potential witnesses for the company.               

 15              Now, I would also like to go over some of   

 16       the rules and regulations that govern a hearing    

 17       before this Commission.  This hearing will be      

 18       similar to a trial in court in that both parties   

 19       will have the opportunity to present evidence in   

 20       the form of sworn testimony and exhibits.  Then,   

 21       after considering all of the evidence, I will make 

 22       a decision which is appealable to the Commission.  

 23              As a Complainant, you, Mr. Chi, will present

 24       your case first.  So you will go first.  Okay?  I  

 25       know that you put your claims in writing when you  

�
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  1       filed the formal complaint.  However, that is not  

  2       part of the evidentiary record, so I would like for

  3       you to repeat those claims for the record all over 

  4       again.  This is your chance to provide me as much  

  5       detail as you can.  Okay?  The formal complaint    

  6       doesn't give you a lot of space to write everything

  7       down.  So this is your opportunity to relay        

  8       everything with regards to your complaint against  

  9       PECO.                                              

 10              I would like for you to present your case in

 11       the chronological order of events from the earlier 

 12       dates to the present.  Okay?  I would also like for

 13       you to provide me with dates if you have them.  If 

 14       you cannot recall the exact date, give me the month

 15       and the year, or the season and the year, or just  

 16       the year.  But still, I need to know when the      

 17       events that you are testifying about happened.     

 18       Okay?                                              

 19              Also, if dollar figures are involved, I     

 20       would like for you to provide me those figures.  If

 21       you don't recall the exact amount, you can round up

 22       or down.  But again, details help me understand    

 23       your story better.                                 

 24              So my job is to develop a clear and complete

 25       record in this case.  And sometimes I interrupt the

�
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  1       parties to ask questions if I feel that I am not   

  2       following, that I misunderstood you, or there is a 

  3       gap in what you are saying.  But that does not mean

  4       that I'm acting either as your attorney or as an   

  5       additional attorney for PECO.                      

  6              Do you understand that, Mr. Chi?            

  7              MR. CHI:  Yes.  Yes.                        

  8              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Okay.  So   

  9       when you, Mr. Chi, as a Complainant, finish telling

 10       your side of the story, then the attorney for PECO 

 11       will ask you some questions.  This is called cross-

 12       examination.                                       

 13              Once the attorney has finished the cross-   

 14       examination, she will present her -- I mean, she   

 15       will present PECO's case.  Okay?  And she will do  

 16       that through her witnesses.  She'll call the first 

 17       witness, that witness will testify.  Then it will  

 18       be your opportunity to ask that witness any        

 19       questions that you may have regarding her          

 20       testimony.                                         

 21              Then PECO will move to the second witness.  

 22       That witness will testify.  When the witness has   

 23       completed the testimony, then you can ask the      

 24       second witness any questions that you may have     

 25       regarding their testimony.  Okay?                  
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  1              MR. CHI:  Okay.                             

  2              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  So one      

  3       individual testifies completely.  Then it's open   

  4       for questions.  Okay?  That's the order.  You go   

  5       first because you are the Complainant, and then    

  6       PECO goes second because they are the Respondent.  

  7       All right?  Are we clear?                          

  8              All right.  Now, let's begin.  Are you      

  9       prepared to testify on your behalf this morning,   

 10       Mr. Chi?                                           

 11              MR. CHI:  Yes.                              

 12              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Very good.  

 13       Before you begin, I need to swear you in first.    

 14       Please raise your right hand.                      

 15              Do you swear or affirm that the testimony   

 16       you're about to give will be the truth, the whole  

 17       truth, and nothing but the truth?                  

 18              MR. CHI:  Yes.                              

 19     (The witness was called to testify, duly sworn, and  

 20             provided the following testimony:)           

 21          ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Thank you.      

 22    Would you please state your name and spell your last  

 23                    name for the record?                  

 24              WITNESS:  It's Mo Se Chi.                   

 25              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Can you     

�

00009

  1       spell your last name?                              

  2              WITNESS:  M-O S-E.  Last name, C-H-I.       

  3              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  All right.  

  4       Thank you.                                         

  5              And what is your current address, Mr. Chi?  

  6              WITNESS:  Yes, it's 1417 Price Lane in      

  7       Downingtown, PA 19335.                             

  8              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Thank you.  

  9       All right.                                         

 10                     DIRECT EXAMINATION                   

 11  BY ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:                       

 12       Q.     So you may start.  Tell me why you filed a  

 13  complaint against PECO.                                 

 14       A.     Yes.  Good morning, Your Honor.  As you may 

 15  have heard, PECO did some billing system transition, I  

 16  want to say, last year.  And for some reason, I know    

 17  many of the customers were affected, and many were      

 18  affected for a few months.  For me, this whole          

 19  transition affected me six months where I did not       

 20  receive any bills from PECO.                            

 21              Ever since the month 3 of not receiving the 

 22  bill, I started calling PECO every month, once a month. 

 23  You know, I had to go through their customer service,   

 24  which you know requires for me to wait on hold for a    

 25  prolonged time to speak to a customer service.          
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  1              You can see I sent in an Exhibit 1, which is

  2  the copy of the complaint.  It got dragged longer, at   

  3  least on the complaint.  The record is July 30th is     

  4  where I called, but before then I started calling them. 

  5              So what really did not help me with all this

  6  was that the customer service was not forthcoming or    

  7  honest about the issue at hand.  They just told me that 

  8  the company needed more time for the system to generate 

  9  the bills.  And yes, this was July.                     

 10              By the way, I believe the last time I paid  

 11  the bill was in April of 2024.  And that's when I       

 12  received the last bill.                                 

 13              In August of (Audio skips.) 4,  I called    

 14  them again, I believe, twice.  And that's when they kind

 15  of finally told me the truth and said that it was       

 16  something about their system not being updated.  And I  

 17  believe when I asked them about the new account numbers 

 18  that the customers received and somehow all that, and   

 19  they kind of alluded to that that was the case and      

 20  that's why.                                             

 21              And when I asked about why some were        

 22  affected and some were not (Audio skips.) give me an    

 23  answer to that.  And even after that, there were more   

 24  phone calls that I made to PECO so that I just could get

 25  some answer.                                            
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  1              Your Honor, in one of the conversations I   

  2  had with the PECO representative, she told me that PECO 

  3  is being negatively affected by this whole billing issue

  4  because PECO is not getting paid the amount from the    

  5  customer during the delay of the bill.  I refuted her   

  6  line of reasoning by asking her that, when the billing  

  7  issue is all resolved, isn't PECO going to receive every

  8  single cent that is owed by the customer being affected?

  9              Your Honor, you and I know that the answer  

 10  is a resounding yes.  And it's only after I filed an    

 11  informal complaint and then a formal complaint, they    

 12  finally reached out to me to give me a hundred-dollar   

 13  credit.                                                 

 14              What I am asking is for PECO to be held     

 15  responsible.  As you know they have the monopoly in the 

 16  market.  I can't go out and find another electric       

 17  distributor for my house.  I know that.  I've done some 

 18  research, and the PECO may have paid PUC some fines     

 19  because of this whole billing mishap.  But aren't the   

 20  customers who were impacted the most supposed to get    

 21  some kind of compensation in regards to this?           

 22              In one of the conversations with the        

 23  customer service, I even suggested that if they can     

 24  generate something, a computer-generated bill with an   

 25  estimate of my bill, and if they send it to me, that I  
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  1  am willing to pay that amount.  They did not have that  

  2  set up, Your Honor.  And if that was the case, I did    

  3  tell the rep, hey, if it's a computer-generated an      

  4  estimate and you send it to me, I will pay month to     

  5  month.  I'm not just going to pay, you know, whatever,  

  6  without some kind of a computer-generated bill.  So they

  7  failed to do that even when I asked them to do that.    

  8              So what I am asking is, I'm requesting a    

  9  hundred-dollar bill credit for every month that I was   

 10  affected.  And I know that this is not a class action   

 11  suit, and I don't know if I can speak for others, but I 

 12  do want others who've been affected -- I don't know how 

 13  many --                                                 

 14              MS. SCOTT:  Your Honor, I would object to   

 15       any conversation regarding other customers.  We can

 16       continue with what specifically happened to Mr. Chi

 17       with regard to relevancy.                          

 18              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Yes.  Mr.   

 19       Chi, you cannot make a complaint on behalf of      

 20       others.  Only attorneys can do that.  You can't    

 21       represent their interest because you don't even    

 22       know if others exist or how many are they.  And    

 23       again, you cannot represent others.                

 24              But you can testify on your own behalf and  

 25       from your firsthand knowledge of the events that   
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  1       affected you.                                      

  2  BY ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:                       

  3       Q.     So go ahead.                                

  4       A.     Yes.  So, yes, I am asking for PECO to be   

  5  accountable for this.  I know that the customer service 

  6  representatives that I spoke to kept on telling me that 

  7  PECO highly values their customer.  But if this is how  

  8  PECO treat their customer, in a sense, wronged, I don't 

  9  know what it means that they value their customer.      

 10              So again, you might ask, why this amount,   

 11  $100 bill credit, for every month.  I guess it's the    

 12  time I spent waiting on the phone, talking to customer  

 13  service representative.  I've spent probably more than  

 14  six hours or maybe close to six hours just trying to get

 15  a hold of it.                                           

 16              And I did, yes, I did receive a letter.  I  

 17  can't remember exact date, but I believe it's when the  

 18  complaint was sent.  I received a letter saying that    

 19  there is an issue with the billing and stuff like that  

 20  from PECO.                                              

 21              Yes.  So that's it, Your Honor.  That's kind

 22  of my case.                                             

 23       Q.     All right.  Thank you.  You did not mention 

 24  when this failure to issue bills to you started and how 

 25  long it lasted.                                         
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  1       A.     Yes.  So the last bill --                   

  2       Q.     When did you (Inaudible.)?                  

  3       A.     Yes, the last bill I received, I believe, is

  4  April of 2024.  Let me go back to my billing history so 

  5  that I don't give you the wrong information.  I believe 

  6  it is.  But ever since the bills have been generated,   

  7  I've been paying month to month the following.          

  8              So the bill, 2024 -- yes, it was the April  

  9  15, 2024, bill.  And I paid that bill on April 29th of  

 10  2024.  Or sorry, sorry.  April 29, 2024, was the bill.  

 11  And I paid that amount on May 2, 2024.  And then the    

 12  next bill that was generated is October 18, 2024.       

 13       Q.     Okay.                                       

 14       A.     And so that's (inaudible.).                 

 15       Q.     So it's May, June, July, August, September. 

 16  Five months you didn't get a bill?                      

 17       A.     Your Honor, I did not get a bill May --     

 18  yeah, May, June, July, August, September.  Yes.  And    

 19  then I got a bill on -- a whole slew of bill on October 

 20  18th, yes.                                              

 21       Q.     Okay.  The bills that you received after    

 22  PECO started billing you, these bills that you received,

 23  you said you received a whole slew of bills.            

 24       A.     Yes.                                        

 25       Q.     Did they have any late payment charges      
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  1  assessed, or were they just strictly charged --         

  2       A.     Yes.                                        

  3       Q.     -- for that year?                           

  4       A.     Yes, that was a fiasco itself, but it's been

  5  resolved.  I have been emailing (Audio skips.) last name

  6  Scott, I believe, with all the late fees, because there 

  7  was supposed to be a hold on my account where late fees 

  8  should not been on.  And so I believe there were three  

  9  months.  Even though I'm paying month to month, there   

 10  were late fees, but they did refund me that, Your Honor.

 11  But that is the --                                      

 12       Q.     Okay.  That is not an issue now?            

 13       A.     Yeah.  No, but -- yeah.                     

 14       Q.     Okay.  All right.                           

 15       A.     So the total of the amount -- yes.  The     

 16  total amount of the, I guess, five months or six months,

 17  how you calculate it, is about a thousand dollars, Your 

 18  Honor.                                                  

 19       Q.     Okay.  All right.  Let's see.  How do you   

 20  usually receive your bills from PECO?  Do you get paper 

 21  copies, or are you enrolled with them online?  Do you   

 22  have an online account with them?                       

 23       A.     Yes.  Yes, I do have an online account.     

 24       Q.     Which -- oh, I'm sorry.  All right.         

 25       A.     Yes.  Email and online account, yes.        
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  1       Q.     So the online account did not have the      

  2  bills.  This is what you're having, what you're saying? 

  3  Even the online --                                      

  4       A.     Correct.                                    

  5       Q.     -- did not generate bills?  Okay.           

  6       A.     It did not generate those five months, Your 

  7  Honor.                                                  

  8              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Okay.  Okay.

  9       All right.  I don't have any further questions for 

 10       you, Mr. Chi, so let's -- I'm going to turn it over

 11       to Ms. Scott to see if she has any questions for   

 12       you.                                               

 13              Ms. Scott, any cross-examination for Mr.    

 14       Chi?                                               

 15              MS. SCOTT:  No, Your Honor.  Thank you.     

 16              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  All right.  

 17       Thank you.                                         

 18              Now, let's move on with PECO's case.        

 19              Ms. Scott, you may call your first witness. 

 20              MS. SCOTT:  I will call Teresa Clark as my  

 21       first witness, Your Honor.                         

 22              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Thank you.  

 23              Ms. Clark, can you hear me?                 

 24              MS. CLARK:  Yes, I can.                     

 25              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Good        
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  1       morning.  Thank you for being with us this morning.

  2              Before you begin your testimony, I need to  

  3       swear you in, so please raise your right hand.     

  4              Do you swear or affirm that the testimony   

  5       you're about to give will be the truth, the whole  

  6       truth, and nothing but the truth?                  

  7              MS. CLARK:  Yes.                            

  8     (The witness was called to testify, duly sworn, and  

  9             provided the following testimony:)           

 10              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Very good.  

 11              Ms. Clark, can you please state your name   

 12       and spell your last name for the record?           

 13              WITNESS:  Yes.  First name is Teresa.  Last 

 14       name, Clark, C-L-A-R-K.                            

 15              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Thank you.  

 16       What is your business address, Ms. Clark?          

 17              WITNESS:  2301 Market Street, Philadelphia, 

 18       PA 19103.                                          

 19              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Thank you.  

 20       And what is your title and job description?        

 21              WITNESS:  Senior supervisor customer service

 22       within the system billing department.  My job      

 23       description is that I manage a team of analysts,   

 24       billing specialists, and billing accounts, and     

 25       managing day-to-day operations in the department.  
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  1              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Thank you.  

  2       You may take over, Ms. Scott.                      

  3              MS. SCOTT:  Thank you, Your Honor.          

  4                     DIRECT EXAMINATION                   

  5  BY MS. SCOTT:                                           

  6       Q.     Good morning, Ms. Clark.  How are you?      

  7       A.     I'm good.  Thank you.                       

  8       Q.     Now, you said that you're a supervisor in   

  9  PECO's billing department; is that correct?             

 10       A.     Yes.                                        

 11       Q.     Are you familiar with the formal complaint  

 12  that brings us here today by Mr. Chi?                   

 13       A.     Yes, I am.                                  

 14       Q.     Did you have an opportunity to look at the  

 15  billing that took place with his account?               

 16       A.     Yes, I did.                                 

 17       Q.     Did you hear the testimony of Mr. Chi that  

 18  he received delayed bills from the period of April 24th 

 19  to October 24th?                                        

 20       A.     Yes.                                        

 21       Q.     Are you able to confirm if that information 

 22  is accurate?                                            

 23       A.     Yes, it is.                                 

 24       Q.     Do you know why Mr. Chi received delayed    

 25  bills?                                                  
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  1       A.     Yes.  Mr. Chi received delayed bills because

  2  in February of 2024, PECO had a system change with our  

  3  billing system.  So he and other customers,             

  4  unfortunately, were impacted due to the system changes. 

  5       Q.     Do you know if the customers, at any point  

  6  in time, in particular Mr. Chi, were informed that there

  7  was a billing delay?                                    

  8       A.     Yes.  An email was sent to Mr. Chi advising 

  9  of the delayed bills on his account.                    

 10       Q.     Now, when a customer has delayed bills, how 

 11  does that work?  Are they given like a lump sum that's  

 12  due just in a bill?  How would a customer know what they

 13  owe once the bills are sent out?                        

 14       A.     So the bills do have the total amount due on

 15  it.  They will know that their account is billed current

 16  based on the bill periods that's on the second page of  

 17  the bill.                                               

 18       Q.     Okay.  I want to direct you to PECO's       

 19  Exhibit 1.  Just let me know when you have that.        

 20       A.     Okay.                                       

 21              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Just a      

 22       moment.                                            

 23              Mr. Chi, did you receive a packet of        

 24       documents from PECO?  I think I received mine on   

 25       April 17.                                          
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  1              MR. CHI:  I will check my -- I will check my

  2       email.  I think I -- oh, let me -- do you know what

  3       the email it was from?  Who was it from?           

  4              MS. SCOTT:  Amy Botak, last name B-O-T-A-K. 

  5       I can forward them to you if you don't have them.  

  6              MR. CHI:  B-O-T-A-K?                        

  7              MS. SCOTT:  Yes.                            

  8              MR. CHI:  Okay.  I searched my email.  I got

  9       it.  I opened it.                                  

 10              MS. SCOTT:  Okay.                           

 11              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Okay.  Now, 

 12       Mr. Chi --                                         

 13              Oh, just a second, Ms. Scott.               

 14              Mr. Chi, I would prefer if you can, to keep 

 15       those documents in front of you.  PECO witnesses   

 16       will refer to those documents while they're        

 17       testifying.                                        

 18              MR. CHI:  Okay.                             

 19              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  And it's    

 20       easier for you to follow, and I do the same to     

 21       follow the testimony.  If they're saying like,     

 22       we're looking at this page of this exhibit, and    

 23       this is a number we're seeing.  Okay.              

 24              Go ahead, Ms. Scott.  Thank you.            

 25              MS. SCOTT:  Okay.                           
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  1  BY MS. SCOTT:                                           

  2       Q.     Now, with regard to Exhibit 1, this first   

  3  page, what is this information?  What is this an image  

  4  of?                                                     

  5       A.     Sorry.  I just want to make sure that I'm   

  6  looking at the right thing.                             

  7       Q.     No, take your time.  It would be Exhibit 1. 

  8  If it's on the screen, it probably says page 3 of 28.   

  9       A.     And 3 of -- and you said it's PECO Exhibit  

 10  1?                                                      

 11       Q.     1, mm-hmm.                                  

 12       A.     That's Exhibit 2.  Okay.  Just bear with me 

 13  one moment, please.                                     

 14       Q.     Take your time.                             

 15       A.     Okay.  I'm sorry.  Okay.  Got it.  All      

 16  right.                                                  

 17       Q.     It's okay.                                  

 18       A.     So Exhibit 1.  Okay.  So Exhibit 1 -- I'm   

 19  sorry.  Can you just repeat the question for me one more

 20  time now that I have it in front of me?                 

 21       Q.     So Exhibit 1, the first image, page 1 of    

 22  three, what does this document represent?  What's this  

 23  information?                                            

 24       A.     This is the first page of a bill.           

 25       Q.     And what's this particular bill date?       
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  1       A.     This bill is dated March 28, 2025.          

  2       Q.     And when is the bill due?                   

  3       A.     Total amount due, April 21, 2025.           

  4       Q.     Do you know if this would be the customer's 

  5  most recent bill?                                       

  6       A.     Yes, it is.                                 

  7       Q.     And what is the total amount due of this    

  8  most recent bill?                                       

  9       A.     So the total account balance as of this     

 10  recent bill is $1,256.88.                               

 11       Q.     Do you know if this $1,256.88 includes all  

 12  of his billing, including the delayed bills?            

 13       A.     Yes, it does.                               

 14       Q.     Okay.  Now, you also said that, when it     

 15  comes to the billing for a customer that had delayed    

 16  bills, they would see it on page 2 of their bills.  Did 

 17  I get that correct?                                     

 18       A.     That is correct.                            

 19       Q.     Okay.  Within Exhibit 1, I want you to go to

 20  the third page of the document.  And that would be page 

 21  4 out of 28 for anyone who's looking at it              

 22  electronically.                                         

 23       A.     Okay.  Yes.                                 

 24       Q.     Okay.  Now, what's the bill date of this    

 25  particular bill?                                        

�

00023

  1       A.     October 18, 2024.                           

  2       Q.     Okay.  Now, I want to go to the very next   

  3  page, which would be page 5 of 28 if you're following   

  4  electronically.                                         

  5       A.     Yes.                                        

  6       Q.     What's the service period that this October 

  7  18, 2024, bill encompasses?                             

  8       A.     It's April 26, 2024, to May 28, 2024.       

  9       Q.     Okay.  Now, why would the October bill      

 10  include charges from April through May?                 

 11       A.     Because this is one of the bill periods that

 12  had previously been delayed and was now being billed.   

 13       Q.     Okay.  So would every bill that Mr. Chi, in 

 14  particular, received had a service period on it?        

 15       A.     Yes.  Yes, it will.                         

 16       Q.     Okay.  Now, with regard to Mr. Chi's account

 17  in particular, do you know if he was billed up to the   

 18  current period at some point in time?                   

 19       A.     Yes.                                        

 20       Q.     Okay.  Now, I want you to scroll down with  

 21  me to the bill dated November 23, 2024.  And that would 

 22  be page 22 out of 28.                                   

 23       A.     Okay.                                       

 24       Q.     Okay.  Now, with regard to the November     

 25  bill, November 23, 2024, can you go to the very next    
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  1  page and tell me the service period that this particular

  2  billing was for?                                        

  3       A.     October 24, 2024, to November 22, 2024.     

  4       Q.     Okay.  So as of October 23rd, had Mr. Chi's 

  5  bills been -- the billing delay issue been rectified, or

  6  were there still billing delays to be expected?         

  7       A.     Yes, give me one second.  It had been       

  8  rectified at this point.                                

  9       Q.     Okay.  Now, is a customer required to pay   

 10  their bill every month in full if PECO has the delayed  

 11  billing issue?  How does that work for a customer?  What

 12  are they supposed to do with their bills in the         

 13  meantime?                                               

 14       A.     So if customers are experiencing delayed    

 15  bills and they call in, they do have the option to pay  

 16  their average bills billed or an amount that makes sense

 17  to them to offset the balance once the delayed bills are

 18  issued.  That is optional.  Some customers do so.  Some 

 19  customers decline because they want to actually have    

 20  their bill in hand.  And for those customers, once their

 21  delayed bills are issued and the accounts are caught up,

 22  they do also have the option to enter into a payment    

 23  arrangement for the delayed balance.                    

 24       Q.     Do you know if a payment arrangement was    

 25  offered to Mr. Chi?                                     
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  1       A.     Yes.                                        

  2       Q.     Do you know if he was actually being charged

  3  late payment charges during the time that the bills were

  4  delayed?                                                

  5       A.     During the time of the bill delays, no, he  

  6  wasn't.                                                 

  7       Q.     Okay.  Are you able to waive the billing of 

  8  Mr. Chi as he's requested because he was inconvenienced;

  9  wouldn't you agree?                                     

 10       A.     While, yes, Mr. Chi was inconvenienced,     

 11  unfortunately, we are not able to waive the balances as 

 12  the charges are for services rendered.                  

 13       Q.     So when you say services rendered, what     

 14  would that mean to you with regard to a customer like   

 15  Mr. Chi?                                                

 16       A.     That, during the periods that Mr. Chi had   

 17  not received bills, although he did not have actual     

 18  bills at that time, he had electricity at his home.     

 19              MS. SCOTT:  Thank you.  I have no further   

 20       questions of this witness, Your Honor.             

 21              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Thank you.  

 22              Mr. Chi, do you have any questions for Ms.  

 23       Clark with regards to her testimony?               

 24              MR. CHI:  Yes.  Well, it's more a question, 

 25       I guess, for you, Your Honor.                      
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  1              I asked for a credit, not --                

  2              MS. SCOTT:  Your Honor, this is cross-      

  3       examination time, so he can ask Ms. Clark a        

  4       question if he likes or my next witness a question.

  5              MR. CHI:  Okay.                             

  6                      CROSS-EXAMINATION                   

  7  BY MR. CHI:                                             

  8       Q.     Ms. Clark, you said that PECO does not waive

  9  the fee, correct?                                       

 10       A.     PECO does not waive the overall account     

 11  balance due to delayed bills.  That is correct.         

 12       Q.     But the PECO can give credits to customers, 

 13  correct?                                                

 14       A.     Credits can be given.                       

 15              MR. CHI:  Yes, and that's what I'm asking.  

 16       Thank you.                                         

 17              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Okay.  I    

 18       understand.  Do you have any other questions for   

 19       Ms. Clark, or is that all?                         

 20              MR. CHI:  No, that's it.  Thank you.        

 21              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  All right.  

 22              Okay.  Thank you, Ms. Clark.                

 23              Hold on.  Hold on.  Hold on.  Before I let  

 24       you go, bear with me for one second.  I need to    

 25       see.  Yes, I do have one question noted for you.   
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  1              Ms. Clark, you testified that an email was  

  2       sent to Mr. Chi by PECO notifying him and other    

  3       affected customers that their bills were delayed or

  4       would be delayed in the future.  Do you know when  

  5       this email was sent out by PECO to notify the      

  6       customers or Mr. Chi more specifically?            

  7              WITNESS:  For Mr. Chi, I believed -- I'm    

  8       sorry.  That was sent out in August of 2024.       

  9              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Okay.       

 10              Is that email anywhere in the packet of     

 11       exhibits proposed by PECO?                         

 12              MS. SCOTT:  It is not, Your Honor.  It would

 13       be in our customer contact system.  I could send as

 14       a late-filed exhibit a screenshot of the entry.    

 15              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  No.  If Ms. 

 16       Clark is able to see it, she can testify with      

 17       regard to its content.                             

 18              Is that email something that apologizes for 

 19       the delay that has occurred or is notifying them   

 20       for the delay that will occur?  Because, by August,

 21       it's several months of no bills being issued.  From

 22       May to August is a good -- May, June, July -- four 

 23       months of no issues.  Is that email saying there   

 24       will be more or apologize for the existing delay,  

 25       for the previous delay?                            
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  1              So I'd like to have the content.  Whether I 

  2       receive it through Ms. Clark's testimony this      

  3       morning or as a late-filed exhibit, I don't have a 

  4       preference.                                        

  5              WITNESS:  So I do not know the exact        

  6       contents of the email.                             

  7              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Okay.  So   

  8       let's have it as a late-filed exhibit then.        

  9              Ms. Scott, how many days do you need to     

 10       procure that exhibit?                              

 11              MS. SCOTT:  Your Honor, I would say that I  

 12       need until Monday because I would have to get --   

 13       I'm sure there's a template of what the email says,

 14       but I would have to figure out which department    

 15       would have it because it's in our software system. 

 16       So I'd say Monday I should be able to send it.     

 17              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Okay.  All  

 18       right.  I'll give you until Wednesday, August 30th,

 19       okay, just in case.  And if you run into           

 20       difficulties or any issues procuring it, just let  

 21       me and Mr. Chi know, and I may adjust the deadline.

 22       All right?                                         

 23              Mr. Chi, I will provide you with additional 

 24       days to review that document, okay, because it     

 25       wasn't submitted ahead of the hearing.  It will    
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  1       come after the hearing.  So I have to provide you  

  2       with an opportunity to review it.                  

  3              MR. CHI:  Yes.                              

  4              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  And once you

  5       have reviewed it, you can file objections to the   

  6       admission of that exhibit into the record.  Okay?  

  7              MR. CHI:  Okay.                             

  8              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Objections  

  9       cannot be, this is incorrect.  Okay?  The          

 10       objections have to be referring to some defect of  

 11       the document.  Okay?  You have to highlight it as  

 12       hearsay, for example, or it's part of a document,  

 13       for example, and so on and so forth.  But you have 

 14       to submit it in writing to me by the deadline.     

 15              I provided PECO with approximately eight    

 16       days, so their deadline is August 30th.  I'm gonna 

 17       give you until August 12th.  I'm sorry, September  

 18       12th.  Okay?  September 12th.  Okay?               

 19              MS. SCOTT:  No, you mean May, Your Honor,   

 20       right?                                             

 21              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Oh, my God. 

 22       Goodness.                                          

 23              MS. SCOTT:  We're in April.                 

 24              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  I know.     

 25              MS. SCOTT:  Yeah.                           
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  1              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  You're      

  2       correct.  I'm all over the place in my calendar.   

  3       I'm looking at something else.  Okay.  I apologize.

  4              So you will have until May 12th, which is a 

  5       Monday, because May 10th -- I was going to give you

  6       10 days -- but May 10th is a Saturday, so May 12th.

  7       Okay?  Write it down somewhere.                    

  8              That is your deadline for notifying me and  

  9       PECO in writing that you have any objections to the

 10       admission of this late-filed exhibit into the      

 11       record in this case.  Okay?                        

 12              Now, I'm going to provide you with my email 

 13       address, which is, if you have pen and paper ready,

 14       I can give it to you right now.  Okay?  It's E as  

 15       in England, V as in Victor, E as in England, R as  

 16       in Robert, and O as in open, okay, @pa.gov, G-O-V, 

 17       P-A for Pennsylvania .gov, okay, for government.   

 18       All right?  So that's my email address.            

 19              And you can send any objections to this     

 20       exhibit to that email address.  All right.         

 21              And also make sure that you cc PECO's       

 22       attorney, Khadijah Scott.  I don't know if you have

 23       her email.  If you don't --                        

 24              MR. CHI:  Yes, I do.                        

 25              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Okay.       
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  1              MR. CHI:  I have her (inaudible.).          

  2              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Very good.  

  3       You have to send her a copy as well.  You can      

  4       carbon copy her.  Cc the same email to her as well,

  5       and everything will be good.                       

  6              The same goes for PECO.  Anything that comes

  7       to me will need to be cc'd to the Complainant, Mr. 

  8       Chi as well.                                       

  9              All right.  Let us see if I have any other  

 10       questions.  All right.  Yes, I do have another     

 11       question.                                          

 12              Ms. Clark, were PECO's customers notified of

 13       the billing system change that was coming -- I     

 14       mean, in the works for PECO before it happened?    

 15              MS. SCOTT:  Yes.                            

 16              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  They were   

 17       notified?  How were they notified before it        

 18       happened, before February 2024?                    

 19              WITNESS:  I know that letters went out, so  

 20       written notification as well as emails.            

 21              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Okay.       

 22              WITNESS:  Yes, there was a lot of           

 23       communication.  I know there were bill inserts as  

 24       well for several months prior to the system        

 25       conversion because customers needed time to prepare
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  1       for what was happening.                            

  2              MR. CHI:  Ms. Clark, can I ask a question?  

  3       Your Honor, to --                                  

  4              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Hold on just

  5       a second.  Just one minute.  Yeah.  Write down that

  6       question.  Don't forget it.  I'll come back to you.

  7              But, Ms. Scott, can we have a copy of that  

  8       notification as well?                              

  9              MS. SCOTT:  Your Honor, I can get you one,  

 10       yes.                                               

 11              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  All right.  

 12       Okay.  All right.  Let me see.  Bear with me.      

 13       Let's see.  Let's see.                             

 14              Now, you, Ms. Clark, testified that, once   

 15       people started issuing the late bills, okay, trying

 16       to catch up for the bills that were not issued,    

 17       let's see, the customers had the option of choosing

 18       to enter into a payment arrangement with PECO about

 19       the amount.  Where in these bills would I see that 

 20       instruction where it says, okay, this is a late    

 21       bill, and you can enter into payment arrangements  

 22       to pay it?                                         

 23              WITNESS:  That isn't something that is      

 24       printed on the bills.                              

 25              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Okay.  All  
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  1       right.  Next question would be, do you know how    

  2       many customers were affected by this delay in      

  3       bills?                                             

  4              WITNESS:  I do not.                         

  5              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  All right.  

  6       Okay.  Let us see.                                 

  7              I don't have any further questions for you, 

  8       Ms. Scott.  I'm sorry, Ms. Clark.                  

  9              I will turn it over to Mr. Chi because he   

 10       indicated that he has some further questions in    

 11       recross.  Go ahead, Mr. Chi.  Questions.           

 12              MR. CHI:  Yes.                              

 13                     RECROSS EXAMINATION                  

 14  BY MR. CHI:                                             

 15       Q.     Ms. Clark, when you said that the           

 16  communications were sent out beforehand, was the        

 17  communication about the customers receiving new account 

 18  number?  And/or was it communication about system change

 19  or upgrade or whatever, however you say it?             

 20       A.     It would have been about both, about the    

 21  system changes as well as new account numbers.          

 22              MR. CHI:  Okay.  Thank you.  That's it, Your

 23       Honor.                                             

 24              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  All right.  

 25       Thank you.                                         
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  1              Thank you, Ms. Clark.                       

  2              Thank you, Mr. Chi.                         

  3              Let's move on with PECO's second witness.   

  4              Ms. Scott, you may --                       

  5              MS. SCOTT:  Your Honor?                     

  6              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  -- your     

  7       second witness.  Yes.                              

  8              MS. SCOTT:  Your Honor, is Ms. Clark allowed

  9       to drop from the call?  She has another engagement.

 10              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Yes.  Yes.  

 11              MS. SCOTT:  Thank you.                      

 12              Thank you, Ms. Clark.                       

 13              PECO would call Renee Tarpley.              

 14              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Good        

 15       morning, Ms. Tarpley.                              

 16              MS. TARPLEY:  Good morning.                 

 17              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Can you hear

 18       me?  Good morning.                                 

 19              MS. TARPLEY:  Yes, I can.                   

 20              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  All right.  

 21       Before you testify, I need to swear you in.  Please

 22       raise your right hand.                             

 23              Do you swear or affirm that the testimony   

 24       you're about to give will be the truth, the whole  

 25       truth, and nothing but the truth?                  
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  1              MS. TARPLEY:  Yes, Your Honor.              

  2     (The witness was called to testify, duly sworn, and  

  3             provided the following testimony:)           

  4              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Thank you.  

  5              Can you please state your name and spell    

  6       your last name for the record?                     

  7              WITNESS:  The name is Renee Tarpley.  The   

  8       last name is spelled T as in Tom, A-R, P as in     

  9       Paul, L-E-Y.                                       

 10              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Thank you.  

 11       And what is your business address, Ms. Tarpley?    

 12              WITNESS:  2301 Market Street, Philadelphia, 

 13       PA 19103.                                          

 14              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Thank you.  

 15       And what is your title and job description?        

 16              WITNESS:  I'm a senior regulatory assessor  

 17       responsible for addressing informal complaints that

 18       are filed by our customers with the Bureau of      

 19       Consumer Services, as well as acting as a custodian

 20       of records in proceedings such as this.            

 21              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Thank you.  

 22              You may take over, Ms. Scott.               

 23              MS. SCOTT:  Thank you, Your Honor.          

 24                     DIRECT EXAMINATION                   

 25  BY MS. SCOTT:                                           

�

00036

  1       Q.     Good morning, Ms. Tarpley.  How are you?    

  2       A.     I'm fine, thank you.                        

  3       Q.     Now, how long have you been employed with   

  4  PECO?                                                   

  5       A.     Approximately 39 and a half years.          

  6       Q.     Okay.  Did you have an opportunity to review

  7  the account of Mr. Chi?                                 

  8       A.     Yes.                                        

  9       Q.     Are you familiar with the formal complaint  

 10  that brings us here today?                              

 11       A.     Yes.                                        

 12       Q.     In your experience with PECO, does PECO, as 

 13  an organization, credit a customer's account if they    

 14  have had a delayed billing circumstance?                

 15       A.     Not basically for the registered usage once 

 16  it's confirmed and verified.  What we do, sometimes,    

 17  because we do offer, like, a goodwill credit to the     

 18  customer, we do cancel any late fees that may have      

 19  occurred on the account.  And that's usually to the     

 20  extent of it.                                           

 21       Q.     Okay.  Now, with regard to late payment     

 22  fees, were late payment charges issued during the       

 23  delayed billing period?                                 

 24       A.     Not during that period.                     

 25       Q.     Okay.  I want to direct your attention to   
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  1  PECO's Exhibit 2, and just let me know when you have    

  2  that.                                                   

  3       A.     I have it.                                  

  4       Q.     And what does this information reflect?     

  5       A.     This is what we consider as the bill segment

  6  to let you know the charges on the account and if any   

  7  sort of activity occurred on the account and what it    

  8  represents.                                             

  9       Q.     Okay.  Now, I see that late payment charges 

 10  were waived on this account.  When were they waived?  Or

 11  I guess I'd say, why were they waived?                  

 12       A.     Well, according to this, if you look at line

 13  8 on this account, there was an adjustment of $72.96 of 

 14  late fees.                                              

 15       Q.     Okay.  Now, was that associated with the    

 16  delayed billing issue or something different?           

 17       A.     That was actually like a goodwill gesture   

 18  when -- I'm currently reviewing the account.  And that  

 19  was one of the means to, like, a goodwill gesture on our

 20  behalf because of the situation.  But it wasn't directly

 21  related to the charges that were placed on the account  

 22  during the delayed period.                              

 23       Q.     When a customer files a formal complaint, is

 24  their account held from going through a --              

 25       A.     Yes, it's held --                           
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  1       Q.     -- collection care?                         

  2       A.     Most definitely.  It's held from collections

  3  to make sure that nothing like that occurs.             

  4       Q.     Okay.  And on occasion, is a customer       

  5  actually charged a late payment charge after it's being 

  6  held?                                                   

  7       A.     Yes, because when we hold the account, we   

  8  hold it on the existing balance at the time that we are 

  9  served.  The customer is expected to pay what we        

 10  consider undisputed charges after the filing date.  So  

 11  if it's not paid, then you would get late charges       

 12  assessed on that amount only.                           

 13       Q.     Okay.  Now, I know that you said that the   

 14  late payment charges would be waived as a courtesy.  Do 

 15  you know if Mr. Chi was offered a customer courtesy     

 16  credit as a result of his inconvenience?                

 17       A.     During this process, the $100 courtesy      

 18  credit was offered and denied.                          

 19       Q.     Okay.  Do you know if there are other       

 20  circumstances, outside of a billing system transition,  

 21  where a customer could receive a delayed bill?          

 22       A.     It could be for a number of reasons.  It    

 23  could be that maybe the meter is not on tape.  Even     

 24  though it's registering, it's not syncing with the      

 25  system, so they would have to put it on tape for        

�

00039

  1  activation.  It could be a number of reasons that that  

  2  could occur.  But it starts with, if it's some sort of  

  3  interruption in the meter activity communicating with   

  4  the system.                                             

  5       Q.     Okay.  So in those instances, for example,  

  6  if the meter isn't reading properly and the customer now

  7  experiences a delayed bill, in those other instances, is

  8  a customer credited for the usage, or what is PECO      

  9  required to do per regulations?                         

 10       A.     Per regulations, we most definitely have to 

 11  first offer a payment agreement based on the accrual    

 12  period of the time that the person experienced those    

 13  issues.                                                 

 14       Q.     And do you know if that was offered in this 

 15  case to Mr. Chi?                                        

 16       A.     It was.                                     

 17       Q.     Do you note that offer was accepted?        

 18       A.     No, it was not accepted.                    

 19              MS. SCOTT:  Thank you.  I have no further   

 20       questions of this witness, Your Honor.             

 21              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Thank you,  

 22       Ms. Scott.                                         

 23              Mr. Chi, do you have any questions for Ms.  

 24       Tarpley?                                           

 25              MR. CHI:  Yes.  Yes.                        
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  1                      CROSS-EXAMINATION                   

  2  BY MR. CHI:                                             

  3       Q.     Ms. Tarpley, you said something about       

  4  goodwill credit.  How does the amount -- who decides on 

  5  this amount?                                            

  6       A.     It could be anyone in our organization.  It 

  7  could be a billing rep.  It could be myself as I'm      

  8  addressing a formal complaint.  And it's usually we     

  9  start at like $50, depending on the nature of the       

 10  complaint, if it's even warranted.                      

 11              But we try to just do it as a goodwill      

 12  business decision for the customer, and hopefully that  

 13  will satisfy them.                                      

 14       Q.     My understanding was when I submitted the   

 15  informal complaint and formal complaint, as soon as that

 16  was entered in, the range of the bill that I'm disputing

 17  in this case, it's from May to September, was considered

 18  a disputed period of time.  You said that when a period 

 19  of time is being disputed, there is no late charges.    

 20              How come I kept on receiving late charges   

 21  (Audio skips.) disputed period of time that I did not --

 22  you know, I did not pay because they are a disputed     

 23  period of time?                                         

 24        A.    I think you filed this complaint, and they  

 25  filed a complaint, and there were minimal late charges  
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  1  on that end.  In our old system, once we held it, it was

  2  automatic.  We didn't have to do any sort of special    

  3  processes to hold the late fees.  And there were a      

  4  couple late fees that were assessed, and they were      

  5  canceled in total and even more of $72.64.  That is why 

  6  the person you spoke to took care of that.  And that's  

  7  just a mishap that happened on the account.  But        

  8  thereafter you are assessed late fees.                  

  9       Q.     Yeah, right.  I have had to reach out to    

 10  them because you guys were keep putting late fees.  It's

 11  like putting salt on the wound.  And I kept on telling  

 12  them, hey, this period is disputed.  Why are you putting

 13  late fees on the disputed charges?                      

 14              So, you know -- and it took, I think, two or

 15  three months, I believe, right, that now there's no late

 16  fees, correct?                                          

 17       A.     Right.  This is what you need to understand.

 18  You filed the informal complaint.  Once that informal   

 19  complaint is closed, we consider it closed, so it goes  

 20  back into the cycle.                                    

 21              Until we get served, or if you decide to    

 22  appeal, that's when we will hold it again.  So if       

 23  anything happens between that time period, it's just    

 24  late fees are assessed between that time period, when   

 25  you do your filings, it's considered justified late     
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  1  fees.  It's not just continuous because you, you know   

  2  you did it there.  And you're saying I'm still in       

  3  dispute with it, but we didn't get served to state that 

  4  you were still in dispute to a certain time period then 

  5  you may get late fees assessed.  But my understanding is

  6  that that has been rectified on your end and our end as 

  7  well.                                                   

  8       Q.     So the formal complaint, I believe -- hold  

  9  on.  Let me see where.  Former (sic) complaint was filed

 10  January 2025.  On your Exhibit 2, I was charged a late  

 11  fee of $15.90 on March 18, 2025.  So that's even two    

 12  months after my formal complaint was filed and accepted 

 13  that I was charged late fee.  I'm looking at your       

 14  Exhibit 2, line item 3.                                 

 15       A.     Right.  Then it says late fees were forgiven

 16  of 15.90.  That's a minus sign in front.                

 17       Q.     Yeah.  Also the charge was -- oh, sorry,    

 18  charge was -- here we go.  February -- sorry -- February

 19  26th, it was charged.                                   

 20       A.     Right.  It was forgiven.                    

 21       Q.     So it still took a month or two or three    

 22  for, I guess, the system to update that my account was  

 23  completely on hold because it took some time, right, for

 24  it to not charge me any late fees?                      

 25       A.     No, that was a human error.  When we placed 
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  1  the formal date on there to hold the account, it was a  

  2  human error that the late payment charge was not held.  

  3  That's why it was canceled on your account March 18th.  

  4              MR. CHI:  Oh.  Okay.  That's it, Your Honor.

  5              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Thank you.  

  6              Let me see if I have any questions for you, 

  7       Ms. Tarpley.  Just bear with me for one moment.    

  8       Okay.  I do have a question.  I'm sorry.           

  9              I know that the issue of the late payment   

 10       charges eventually was resolved between the        

 11       customer and PECO.  They were removed.  But I just 

 12       need to clarify for myself.                        

 13              These late payment charges began to         

 14       accumulate around December of 2024, am I correct,  

 15       once the makeup bill's due date passed; is that    

 16       correct?  And there was no payment?                

 17              WITNESS:  There --                          

 18              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Yes.  I'm   

 19       sorry.  Go ahead.                                  

 20              WITNESS:  There was no payment on the       

 21       account.  The late payment charges began on the    

 22       bill again in December.  We considered the issue   

 23       resolved.  So, yes, that's why all the payments,   

 24       all the late fees were canceled on the account.    

 25              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Okay.  All  
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  1       right.  Okay.  Let's see.  All right.  All right.  

  2              I don't have any further questions for you. 

  3              What -- oh, I do have one.                  

  4              What is the current outstanding balance in  

  5       the account, or rather these disputed bills?  What 

  6       is the total balance for these disputed bills; do  

  7       you know?                                          

  8              WITNESS:  Well, he just made a payment, so  

  9       the balance is now at $1053.90.                    

 10              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Okay.  So   

 11       it's about 1100 or $1000.  Okay.                   

 12              MS. SCOTT:  1,053.90.                       

 13              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  1,053.90.   

 14              And, Mr. Chi, if I understood you correctly,

 15       your request for relief from the Commission was    

 16       that you receive a discount, you said --           

 17              MR. CHI:  A credit.                         

 18              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  -- for the -

 19       - a credit for the imposition?  And I think you    

 20       stated you had a specific amount in mind.  You said

 21       $100 every month you did not receive a bill?       

 22              MR. CHI:  Correct.                          

 23              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  So it will  

 24       be a $500 credit --                                

 25              MR. CHI:  Yes.                              

�

00045

  1              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  -- out of   

  2       $1,000 total balance.  You want a 50 percent       

  3       credit?                                            

  4              MR. CHI:  Yes.                              

  5              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Okay.  All  

  6       right.  I don't have any further questions for you,

  7       Ms. Tarpley.                                       

  8              At this point, I don't have any questions   

  9       for Mr. Chi either.                                

 10              However, I do need to address the issue of  

 11       the payment arrangement.                           

 12              Mr. Chi, you are certain in your position   

 13       that you do not wish to pay the outstanding balance

 14       through a payment arrangement; am I correct?       

 15              MR. CHI:  No, Your Honor.  I am willing to  

 16       pay after this is all done.  I did not want to pay 

 17       (Audio skips.) the court hearing's been set.  I    

 18       just wanted to address this with you.  And then    

 19       after that, yeah, whatever the ruling is, I will --

 20       you know, whatever that I need to do to pay, I will

 21       pay that, of course.                               

 22              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  All right.  

 23       Let us see.  I want to let you know that the       

 24       Commission has no jurisdiction or have any         

 25       authority to issue monetary damages.  Okay?        
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  1              So if you're saying that you spend X amount 

  2       of time on the line and that your time is worth X  

  3       amount of money, the Commission does not have      

  4       authority to issue monetary damages.  Okay?        

  5              MR. CHI:  Okay.                             

  6              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  What we have

  7       authority to do is to see whether the utility      

  8       violated a statute, a regulation, or order, or its 

  9       own tariff in their dealings with you when they    

 10       provided service with you.                         

 11              If we find that the company has, in fact,   

 12       violated a statute, regulation, or order, then we  

 13       can assess what is called a civil penalty.  When   

 14       the company pays that, the civil penalty does not  

 15       go to the customer.  It goes to the general fund   

 16       for the government.                                

 17              You, however, have the opportunity to take  

 18       the Commission's finding, and with those findings, 

 19       you can go to a common pleas court -- I'm sorry -- 

 20       which is a court of general jurisdiction.  And they

 21       have the ability to assess monetary damages if that

 22       is the case.  Okay?  And that is in the event that,

 23       following review of the record in this case, I find

 24       that the company has violated commission statute,  

 25       regulation, or order.                              
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  1              All right.  Let's see.                      

  2              MR. CHI:  Your Honor, I have a question.  So

  3       let's just say they do pay a fine to, you know, the

  4       civil court.  For me to reach out to them, am I    

  5       able to put an indefinite hold on my disputed five 

  6       months until I hear back from the civil courts?    

  7              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  During the  

  8       appeal period, I believe that that balance that is 

  9       in dispute is frozen.                              

 10              MR. CHI:  Okay.                             

 11              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Okay?       

 12              MR. CHI:  Okay.                             

 13              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  The bills   

 14       that come afterwards are not -- because they are   

 15       not disputed, but the amount that is disputed is   

 16       held --                                            

 17              MR. CHI:  I (inaudible.) that.              

 18              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  -- on the   

 19       side.  Yes.  So the amount that are in dispute are 

 20       on the side, okay, are held on the side.  But that 

 21       is --                                              

 22              MS. SCOTT:  Your Honor --                   

 23              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  -- until    

 24       this commission issues a final opinion and order in

 25       this case.  Okay?                                  
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  1              The process with another court that I don't 

  2       believe it freezes the disputed amount.  Okay?  You

  3       understand?                                        

  4              So this Commission will make a final opinion

  5       and order, and that final opinion and order is the 

  6       end of this case with this Commission.  If you     

  7       choose to file an appeal for further.  I think that

  8       it does not affect the outstanding balance, but I'm

  9       not sure.                                          

 10              Yes, Ms. Scott.                             

 11              MS. SCOTT:  No, I was just going to clarify 

 12       what you said, that this is all in relation to the 

 13       Commission and its practices, not any other future 

 14       civil court.  And if he wants to go that, that     

 15       doesn't freeze an account.                         

 16              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Yeah.  We   

 17       don't.  Yes, that depends on the outcome on this   

 18       case and what the Commission decides.  However,    

 19       once the Commission makes a final decision, the    

 20       outstanding balance becomes due and owed.  Whatever

 21       the Commission said is the outstanding balance at  

 22       that point, that is due and owed.  What you do on, 

 23       I mean, on another court, it doesn't affect the    

 24       outstanding balance.                               

 25              You might get money back.  You might not.  I
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  1       don't know.  Maybe you won't have ground to appeal.

  2       Maybe you will.  I don't know at this point.  But  

  3       whatever happens in another court does not impact  

  4       the date the amount is due and owed, I don't       

  5       believe.                                           

  6              So I can only speak for this, and I can say 

  7       that, until the Commission makes a final           

  8       determination in this case -- and you will receive 

  9       an order by the Commission that says the amount is 

 10       due and owed, then you will know.  Until that date,

 11       that amount is frozen.  The disputed amount is     

 12       frozen.  Okay?                                     

 13              MR. CHI:  All right.                        

 14              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  All right.  

 15       Okay.                                              

 16              Now, any other questions:  direct, recross, 

 17       anything before we let Ms. Tarpley go?             

 18              MS. SCOTT:  No, Your Honor.  PECO would just

 19       ask that its Exhibits 1 through 4 be admitted and -

 20       - excuse me, 1 through 2 be admitted into evidence.

 21              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Okay.  Mr.  

 22       Chi, any questions for Ms. Tarpley from you?       

 23              MR. CHI:  No, Your Honor.  I don't have any 

 24       more questions.                                    

 25              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  All right.  
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  1       All right.  Very good.  So now, let's turn over to 

  2       the exhibits.                                      

  3              Thank you, Ms. Tarpley.  You are excused.   

  4              Let's turn to the exhibits and take a look  

  5       at them.  Both parties have submitted exhibits of  

  6       their own, so let's move on.  Let's move ahead with

  7       the Complainant's exhibits.                        

  8              You, Mr. Chi, submitted two exhibits, I     

  9       believe:  1 is an informal complaint investigation,

 10       and Exhibit 2 is the account history.  Do you want 

 11       to move these exhibits into the record in this     

 12       case?                                              

 13              MR. CHI:  Yes, Your Honor.  It's just the   

 14       background information for all the conversation I  

 15       had with PECO.                                     

 16              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Okay.  Just 

 17       so that you are aware, if the exhibits are admitted

 18       into the record in this case, I can review and use 

 19       the information that they contain when I write the 

 20       decision.  Okay?                                   

 21              MR. CHI:  Yes.                              

 22              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  So.  All    

 23       right.                                             

 24              Ms. Scott, does PECO have any objection to  

 25       the admission of Complainant Exhibit 1 and 2 into  

�

00051

  1       the record in this matter?                         

  2              MS. SCOTT:  No, Your Honor.  Thank you.     

  3              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Thank you.  

  4       All right.  No objections having been heard,       

  5       Complainant's Exhibit 1 and 2 are hereby admitted  

  6       into the record in this matter.  I am going to     

  7       identify them as Chi Exhibit 1, the informal       

  8       complaint investigation, and Chi Exhibit 2, the    

  9       account history.                                   

 10  (Whereupon, Chi Exhibits 1 and 2 were marked and entered

 11  into the record.)                                       

 12              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  All right.  

 13       Now, let's move ahead with PECO's exhibits.        

 14              As Ms. Scott mentioned earlier, PECO has two

 15       exhibits.  Rather, PECO's witnesses sponsored two  

 16       exhibits.  It's PECO Exhibit 1 and PECO Exhibit 2. 

 17              You, Mr. Chi, have reviewed them prior to   

 18       today's hearing and during today's hearing.  Do you

 19       have any objection to the admission of these       

 20       exhibits into the record?                          

 21              MR. CHI:  No, Your Honor, I do not have any 

 22       objections.                                        

 23              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Okay.  No   

 24       objections having been heard, PECO's Exhibits 1 and

 25       2 are hereby admitted into the record in this case.

�

00052

  1  (Whereupon, PECO Exhibits 1 and 2 were marked and       

  2  entered into the record.)                               

  3                All right.  Before we conclude, I would   

  4       like to see if the parties have anything else that 

  5       they want me to know before we conclude this       

  6       hearing.                                           

  7              Mr. Chi, is there anything else that you    

  8       wish to tell me, sort of as a closing statement    

  9       before we conclude?                                

 10              MR. CHI:  No, Your Honor.  That's it.       

 11              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  No?  Okay.  

 12       Anything from PECO?                                

 13              MS. SCOTT:  No, Your Honor.  Thank you.     

 14              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  All right.  

 15              Now, let me go over briefly what's going to 

 16       happen next.  So what's going to happen next is    

 17       that, after I receive PECO's late-filed exhibits   

 18       and any written objections from Mr. Chi --         

 19              Mr. Chi, if you have no objections, you     

 20       don't have to do anything.  And if you don't do    

 21       anything, once the deadline for filing written     

 22       objections, which was May 10th, passes, I will     

 23       assume you have no objections, and I will close the

 24       record, and I'll review the record as it stands.   

 25              So once the deadline of May 10th has passed,
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  1       I will review all the evidence in this case,       

  2       consisting of the testimonies and the exhibits, and

  3       I will issue a written decision.  When that        

  4       happens, both parties will receive a copy of that  

  5       decision.  Okay?                                   

  6              Along with that decision, there will be     

  7       instructions for filing what are called exceptions 

  8       with the Commission.  Exceptions are a party's     

  9       opportunity to notify the Commission in writing    

 10       that they feel I have made an error somewhere in my

 11       decision.  If exceptions are filed by either party,

 12       this case will be reviewed by a panel of           

 13       commissioners who will review all the evidence as  

 14       well as my decision, and will issue a final opinion

 15       and order.                                         

 16              When they do that, both parties will receive

 17       a copy of that order, the entry date of which is   

 18       the party's indication that a final determination  

 19       on this complaint has been made by this Commission.

 20       The parties will be expected to abide by the terms 

 21       of that order.                                     

 22              If no exceptions are filed by either party, 

 23       then the Commission may still choose to review this

 24       case on its own authority.  If it chooses to do so,

 25       then once again, the panel of commissioners will   
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  1       review all of the evidence in this case, and they  

  2       will issue a final opinion and order.  And the     

  3       parties are expected to abide by the terms of that 

  4       order.                                             

  5              Lastly, if no exceptions are filed and the  

  6       Commission chooses not to review this case, then   

  7       after a certain period of time has passed, my      

  8       decision as written will become final by what is   

  9       called operation of law.  When that happens, the   

 10       parties will receive a letter from the secretary of

 11       the Commission notifying them that my decision has 

 12       become final and that they are expected to abide by

 13       the terms of the ordering paragraphs of that       

 14       decision.                                          

 15              Do you have any questions?                  

 16              MR. CHI:  No, Your Honor.                   

 17              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  No?         

 18              MR. CHI:  I do not have any questions.      

 19              ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE VERO:  Okay.  Very 

 20       good.                                              

 21              Well, then, that concludes this morning's   

 22       hearing.  I would like to thank all of you for your

 23       appearance and participation here today.  Enjoy the

 24       rest of the day.  Goodbye.                         

 25              We are off the record.                      
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  1                                                          

  2  (Off the record at 11:09 a.m.)                          

  3                                                          

  4                                                          

  5                                                          

  6                                                          

  7                                                          

  8                                                          

  9                                                          

 10                                                          

 11                                                          

 12                                                          

 13                                                          

 14                                                          

 15                                                          

 16                                                          

 17                                                          

 18                                                          

 19                                                          

 20                                                          

 21                                                          

 22                                                          

 23                                                          

 24                                                          

 25                                                          
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  1                    C E R T I F I C A T E                 

  2                                                          

  3                   I hereby certify, as the               

  4  stenographic/digital reporter, that the foregoing       

  5  proceedings were taken stenographically/digitally by me 

  6  via remote teleconference, and thereafter reduced to    

  7  typewriting by me or under my direction; and that this  

  8  transcript is a true and accurate record to the best of 

  9  my ability.                                             

 10                                                          

 11                                                          

 12                 ______________________________           

 13                 Marissa Bennett                          
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